Agenda
For enquiries on this agenda, please contact:
Fiona Cotter 0208 547 4607
email: democratic.services@kingston.gov.uk
This agenda is available on:
www.kingston.gov.uk
Published on 14 July 2021

SURBITON NEIGHBOURHOOD COMMITTEE
Date:

Thursday 22 July 2021

Time:

7:30 pm

Place:

The Guildhall, Kingston
Covid-19 Safety measures

This meeting will be livestreamed and we encourage residents to watch virtually, if
possible.
We are currently awaiting updated Government guidance on the COVID risk mitigation
measures that may be in place and we will provide further information in due course.
It may mean that seating capacity may continue to be limited and for that reason, if
Members of the public wish to attend in person, you must register your interest by
10am the day before the meeting by contacting democratic.services@kingston.gov.uk
and ideally, if you would like to speak at the meeting we would wish to facilitate your
attendance in person at the Guildhall if possible.

Members of the Committee
Alexandra Ward

Councillor Mark Beynon
Councillor Sam Foulder-Hughes
Councillor Sharron Falchikov-Sumner

Berrylands Ward

Councillor Sushila Abraham
Councillor Anita Schaper (Co-Chair)
Councillor John Sweeney

St Mark’s Ward

Councillor Liz Green
Councillor Diane White
Councillor Yogan Yoganathan

Surbiton Hill Ward

Councillor Hilary Gander
Councillor Alison Holt (Co-Chair)
Councillor Malcolm Self

This meeting will be livestreamed on the Council’s website
This agenda is available to view on: www.kingston.gov.uk
You can also access this agenda through the Modern.gov app or by scanning the QR
code with your smartphone.

Agenda
1.

Public Questions

A period of up to 30 minutes during which any resident of the Borough or
representative of organisations operating within the Borough (other than
members of the Council) may ask questions on matters relevant to the
Committee.
Advanced notice by 10am the day before the meeting is not a requirement
but would be appreciated.
2.

Apologies for Absence

3.

Declarations of Interest

Members are invited to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests and any
non- pecuniary interests (personal interests) relevant to items on this
agenda.
4.

Petitions

To receive petitions submitted by Councillors or members of the public who
live, work or study in the Borough. The petition must contain at least 20
signatures*, and notice of the intention to submit the petition is given in
writing to democratic.services@kingston.gov.uk by 10am on the last
working day prior to the meeting.
*The Chair may waive the 20 signature threshold where the petition relates
to a community or geographical area with a limited number of residents.
5.

Planning Consultation - 21/01313/Out - Willow Grange Care
Home, 1 - 3 Adelaide Road, Surbiton Kt6 4ta

Appendix A

To receive a presentation on planning application Willow Grange Care Home
1 - 3 Adelaide Road Surbiton KT6 4TA

6.

King Charles Road Low Traffic Scheme - Experimental Traffic
Management Order Review

Appendix B

To provide feedback to the Committee on a number of workstreams, which
includes consultation responses (portal/email/ETMO), comment on traffic
surveys and air quality assessments and potential impacts and to seek a
way forward with the measures.
7.

Community Grants

Report by Assistant Director Culture, Communities and Engagement on the
Community Grants Programme.

Appendix C

8.

Neighbourhood Manager's Verbal Update Report

9.

Surbiton Neighbourhood Co-Chairs Annual Report 2020/21

Appendix D

To note a report of the Surbiton Neighbourhood Co-Chairs on the work of
the Committee during 2020/21.
10.

Work Programme

11.

Urgent Items Authorised By The Chair

12.

Exclusion Of The Press And Public

Appendix E

The following resolution is included as a standard item which will only be relevant if any
exempt matter is to be considered at the meeting for which the Committee wish to
resolve to exclude the press and public:
To exclude the public from the meeting under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local
Government Act 1972 on the grounds that it is likely that exempt information, as defined
in paragraph x of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act, would be disclosed and the public
interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the
information.

Notes on Attendance
Notice of Webcast
This meeting is being filmed for live and subsequent recorded broadcast via the Council’s
website. The images and sound recording may also be used for training purposes with the
Council. Generally, the public seating areas are not filmed. However, the layout of the
room means that the Council is unable to guarantee a seat/location that is not within
coverage area (images and sound) of the webcasting equipment.
By entering the meeting room and using the public seating area, you are consenting to
being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recording for webcasting
and/or training purposes.
Information about the Committee
The Committee is made up of your local elected councillors in the Surbiton area. As one
of four Neighbourhood Committees of the Council, it helps the Council in its service
delivery locally.

Covid-19 Safety measures
This meeting will be livestreamed and we encourage residents to watch virtually,
if possible.
We are currently awaiting updated Government guidance on the COVID risk mitigation
measures that may be in place and we will provide further information in due course.
It may mean that seating capacity may continue to be limited and for that reason, if
Members of the public wish to attend in person, you must register your interest by
10am the day before the meeting by contacting democratic.services@kingston.gov.uk
and ideally, if you would like to speak at the meeting we would wish to facilitate your
attendance in person at the Guildhall if possible
Emergency evacuation arrangements
If the fire alarm sounds during the meeting, please leave the building by the nearest
exit. If you require assistance, please remain seated and an Officer will assist you from
the building.

Public participation during the meeting
Public Question time
Subject to any Government guidance on the COVID risk mitigation measures that
may be in place, there is a question time of up to 30 minutes from 7.30pm to 8.00pm to
provide an opportunity for members of the public or representatives of organisations
operating in the Borough to ask questions on matters which are the responsibility of this
particular committee.
Advanced notice is not normally required of an intention to ask a question but in the
current circumstances, would be appreciated in order manage the logistics of the
meeting.
Questions will normally be taken at the meeting in the order that they have been
received.

Questions must be put in person but you can ask someone to provide translation or
other practical assistance to facilitate a question where required. If you do not attend the
meeting or fail to identify yourself at the meeting then the question will be deemed to be
withdrawn.
If you have submitted more than one question, your second and subsequent questions
shall be considered only after all other questioners have had the opportunity to ask their
questions, if time allows. You will have up to three minutes in which to ask any question.
Any questions not dealt with within the 30 minute time limit will receive a written
response.
Public speaking on items on the Agenda
Subject to any Government guidance on the COVID risk mitigation measures that
may be in place, during the course of the meeting, the Chair, at his/her discretion, may
allow contributions on items listed on the agenda.
If you wish to attend in person, you must register your interest by 10am the day
before the meeting by contacting democratic.services@kingston.gov.uk and ideally, if
you would like to speak at the meeting we would wish to facilitate your attendance in
person at the Guildhall if possible.
Filming
Members of the public and journalists/media wishing to film meetings are permitted to
do so but are asked to give advance notice of this and respect any concerns expressed
by people being filmed.
Interests
Councillors must say if they have an interest in any of the items on the Agenda.
Interests may be personal or pecuniary. Depending on the interest declared, it might be
necessary for the Councillor to leave the meeting during the debate on any given item.
Further information regarding declarations of interest can be found in Part 5A of the
Constitution - Members’ Code of Conduct.
Call-in
Most of the decisions made at the Committee (except in relation to planning and
licensing matters) can be “called in” for review by a minimum of 2% of the registered
local government electors who live in the Neighbourhood (for Surbiton that is 578
electors) or 9 Councillors.
Call-in does not apply to decisions of this committee in respect of planning or
licensing matters. These are subject to a separate legal appeals process.
A Decision notice will be published on the Council’s website soon after the meeting with
details of the decisions. A decision can be called in for a period of 10 working days
after the meeting. Decisions are not, therefore, acted upon until it is clear that they are
not going to be called in.
The call-in means the decision will be reviewed by a meeting of the Council’s Scrutiny
Panel. The Panel at this meeting cannot change the original decision. It may decide
that no further action is necessary, in which case the decision will be implemented or
will refer the issue back to the decision making Committee (or, exceptionally, to a
meeting of the Full Council) with its views and a request that the decision is
reconsidered taking account of these views.

Minutes
The Minutes briefly summarise the item and record the decision. They do not record
who said what during the debate.

Appendix A

A1

SURBITON NEIGHBOURHOOD COMMITTEE
22/07/2021
REPORT BY
Assistant Director of Strategic Planning & Infrastructure
INDEX
ITEM
NO

REGISTER NO

ADDRESS

DESCRIPTION

RECOMMENDATION

A1

21/01313/OUT

Willow
Outline application for N/A
Grange Care demolition of existing
care home and erection
Home
of
a
six
storey
replacement
60
bed
1 - 3 Adelaide
care home and brain
Road
injury
unit,
with
alterations
to
the
Surbiton
access from Adelaide
Road and associated
KT6 4TA
parking (application to
consider
access,
appearance, layout and
scale, with landscaping
as a reserved matter).v

PAGE
NO
A3

A1

A2

Surbiton Neighbourhood Committee
Date of Meeting: 22 July 2021
Register No: 21/01313/OUT
Address:
Willow Grange Care Home, 1 - 3 Adelaide Road, Surbiton, KT6 4TA

(c) Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. Royal Borough of Kingston 2021. Licence
number 100019285.
[Please note that this plan is intended to assist in locating the development; it is not
the site plan of the proposed development, which may have different boundaries.
Please refer to the application documents for the proposed site boundaries.]

Page A3

A3

Ward:

St Mark’s

Description of Proposal:

Outline application for demolition of existing care
home and erection of a six storey replacement 60
bed care home and brain injury unit, with alterations
to the access from Adelaide Road and associated
parking
(application
to
consider
access,
appearance, layout and scale, with landscaping as
a reserved matter).

Plan Type:

Outline Application

Expiry Date:

27/07/2021

This planning application has been brought to the Surbiton Neighbourhood
Committee for comment. The application for the above mentioned
development will be determined at the Planning Committee (if the Officer
recommendation is for approval) in accordance with the Council’s Scheme of
Delegation.
Proposal
1.

Outline planning permission is sought for the demolition of the existing building
and the erection of a new six storey building (plus basement) to provide a 12
bed facility for the treatment of brain injuries and a 60 bed care home (use class
C2), together with alterations to the access off Adelaide Road and
minibus/ambulance parking. The application is to consider access, appearance,
layout and scale; landscaping is reserved for future consideration.

2.

The application site is located within the Claremont Road Conservation Area. It
is also within a controlled parking zone (Zone S) and has a PTAL of 5 (Very
good).

3.

The proposed development would be ‘car free’. The only on-site parking would
consist of 1no. minibus parking space and 1no. emergency vehicle parking
space.

4.

The cycle parking would consist of 14no. staff parking spaces and 6no. visitor
parking spaces.

Consultations

Page A4

A4

Neighbour notifications: 141 neighbouring addresses have been notified of the
proposal by letter dated 11/05/2021. In addition the application was advertised by
way of a site notice dated 12/05/2021 and by way of a press notice in the Surrey
Comet on 13/05/2021.
A total of 73 representations have been received to date. Of these representations,
71 object to the proposed development, raising the following summarised planning
concerns:
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Inadequate car parking;
Increased congestion;
Highway safety;
Excessive scale, bulk and height;
Inappropriate massing;
Loss of light;
Loss of privacy;
Overbearing appearance;
Noise pollution;
Light pollution;
Air quality;
Disruption caused by construction;
Harm to heritage assets;
Loss of the existing building;
Poor standard of accommodation; and,
Prejudicial to the use of adjacent sites for housing.

In support of the planning application, 2 responses have been received raising the
following summarised comments:
● Improved provision of care facilities; and,
● The location is appropriate for the use.
Key Consultee Responses
Thames Water:

No objection subject to informatives relating
to protection of Thames Water assets.

Designing Out Crime Officer:

Comments awaited.

Surbiton CAAC:

Objection on the grounds of loss of the
existing building and scale, bulk, height,
detailed design of proposed new building.
Page A5

A5

Urban greening factor and quality of
outdoor amenity spaces are also a key
concern.
RBK Highways and Transportation:

Comments awaited.

RBK Environmental Health Team:

Comments awaited in relation to Air quality,
however, subject to conditions, no
objections in respect of Noise and Land
Contamination.

RBK Urban Design Team:

Comments awaited.

RBK Flood Risk Officer:

Comments awaited.

RBK Biodiversity Officer:

Comments awaited.

RBK Tree & Landscape Officer:

Comments awaited.

Assessment
The main considerations material to the determination of this application are:
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

The principle of the proposed development;
The impact on the character and appearance of the area;
The impact on heritage assets;
The impact on the amenities of neighbouring occupiers;
Highway safety;
Cycle parking;
Car parking;
Drainage;
Air Quality & Noise;
The impact on trees;
Fire safety;
Microclimate (wind, glare, noise);
Biodiversity; and,
Sustainability.

Page A6

A6

Conclusion
All comments raised will be taken into account in the assessment of the planning
application and will be reported to the Planning Committee (if the Officer
recommendation is for approval) in accordance with the Council’s Scheme of
Delegation.

Page A7

Surbiton Neighbourhood Committee

B1

Appendix B

22 July 2021
King Charles Road Low Traffic Scheme - Experimental Traffic Management Order
review
Report by Matthew Hill - Assistant Director Highways, Transport and Regulatory Services
Relevant Portfolio Holder - Councillor Stephanie Archer
Purpose of Report
To provide feedback to the Committee on a number of workstreams, which includes
consultation responses (via the portal/email/ETMO), comment on traffic surveys and air
quality assessments and potential impacts, and to seek a way forward with the scheme.
Recommendation(s)
The Committee is asked to RESOLVE that:
1. The King Charles Road closure to motor vehicles be made permanent and the
necessary statutory process be undertaken to make the order permanent
2. The objections received as part of the statutory consultation be set aside in line
with the details in paragraphs 45 to 48
3. The physical closure (bollard) be replaced with ANPR cameras, subject to funding
being made available by TfL and in line with paragraph 30.
4. The scheme will be monitored, with additional traffic and air quality data being
collected, and an update report be brought to the committee for information in 12
months time

Benefits to the Community:
It is considered that the proposals will improve the local area and make it more attractive
for our residents, creating an environment that encourages more walking and cycling.
Key Points
A.

In March 2020 the world was hit by the COVID-19 pandemic, and the changing
travel patterns presented both an opportunity and a threat. The opportunity was
that the council was able to bring forward at a quicker pace than expected a number
of ‘low traffic neighbourhood’ (LTN) or ‘streetspace’ projects which would help
deliver the council’s longer term vision of a cleaner greener borough, tackling the
climate crisis and air quality.

B.

We want to make Kingston a clean, green and safe borough for all residents. It is
therefore important that our analysis looks at other factors such as the impact of the

B2
schemes on air quality, traffic flows and cycling patterns. LTNs are an important
tool to make local roads safer for pedestrians and cyclists, and so to help tackle our
climate crisis, improve air quality and make our neighbourhoods better places to
live.to make local roads safer for pedestrians and cyclists. LTNs encourage active
travel, which in the long term helps to protect the environment and reduce carbon
emissions.

C.

The Council originally identified four scheme locations for LTNs, which were set out
in the report to the Response and Recovery Committee on 30 July 2020. It
included a scheme for the King Charles Road area in Surbiton Neighbourhood, and
the scope of the scheme area can be seen on the plan at Annex 1.

D.

The process used to implement the LTNs was an ‘Experimental Traffic Management
Order’ (ETMO). Use of this process was strongly encouraged by central
government and TfL. This is a common process which allows the immediate
implementation of measures on a trial basis and a consultation running in parallel
with the implementation of the experiment, although it is not the ‘usual’ way that
Kingston has implemented traffic management and improvement projects of this
type.

E.

The ETMO process includes a six month engagement period at the start of the trial.
The experimental scheme itself can remain in place for up to 18 months in total. In
addition to the formal traffic order consultation, residents were able to submit their
views about the LTN schemes online ‘informally’ using the Kingston Let’s Talk
portal. Over 270 residents submitted their views via Kingston Let’s Talk on the LTN
on King Charles Road. The engagement process also included reaching out to
stakeholder groups, setting up the Street Talk publication and feedback through the
Streetspace email inbox and via Members. The engagement feedback is, however,
only part of the overall analysis process, which includes the longer-term policy
ambitions for the Council, as set out in the context below.

F.

Although there was a formal process by which responses to the ETMO could be
made, it was felt the series of questions used for the Let’s Talk survey would
capture more precisely people’s experiences and attitudes to the LTNs. Detail on
Let’s Talk is set out in para 12 below.

G.

The borough’s key Transport Strategy, the Local Implementation Plan 3 (LIP3), and
the Corporate Plan are aligned in terms of focussing on measures to address traffic
flows in residential areas.

Context
1.

We must change the way we travel around the borough if we are to achieve our
air quality goals and reach net zero carbon emissions. COVID-19 has had a
significant impact on the way we use our streets in responding to the public
health crisis and there is a degree of uncertainty about how future travel patterns
will change.

2.

B3
Through the development and delivery of the annual programme of Local
Implementation Plan (LIP) schemes officers were aware of locations across the
borough where through traffic had been identified as being too high, including, in
Surbiton Neighbourhood, along King Charles Road. Due to the pandemic, TfL
withdrew much of its usual funding, however DfT and TfL made funds available
to rapidly deliver ‘streetspace’ and LTN schemes, and this scheme was taken
forward as a result.

3.

The introduction of LTNs also support recommendations from Kingston’s
Citizens’ Assembly on Air Quality, the Air Quality Action Plan and the council’s
emerging Climate Emergency Action Plan and it is noted that this Committee
have recently supported proposals to introduce 20mph speed limit changes for all
the residential roads in the neighbourhood, which when considered in
conjunction with the measures in place in King Charles Road and the Go Cycle
measures on Ewell Road, it is anticipated will enhance this local area further to
provide an improved environment for walking and cycling.

4.

The LIP3 was written to reflect the aims and objectives identified in Kingston’s
key existing and emerging policy and strategy documents, and also London wide
and national policy guidance. Kingston’s key policy documents include the
existing and emerging Corporate and Local Plans. The LIP3 includes nine
Mayor’s Transport Strategy outcomes which it will be measured against, and
Outcome 1 states that London/Kingston streets will be healthy and more
Londoners will travel actively with borough objectives to deliver 20mph schemes
across the borough on residential roads, and to create an environment that
encourages a higher level of walking and cycling trips.

Proposal and Options
5.

The scheme itself involves the introduction of a road closure, which prevents
motor traffic from heading along King Charles Road, and it was placed between
the junctions of Beaconsfield Road and Alexandra Drive. The scheme involved
putting in place two planters and a lockable bollard in the central road space
between the planters, such that it could allow emergency service vehicles to gain
access, should they wish to do so.

6.

As highlighted above, because of the urgency with which the LTNs needed to be
introduced the identification of the location and the consideration of any options
was undertaken by officers at the time of the bid submission.

7.

During the ETMO process officers used a number of methods of engagement to
ensure we were collecting information and data from a wide base of interested
parties, and a further assessment of the responses can be seen later in the
report (paragraphs 43 and 44).

8.

These included setting up surveys for each LTN scheme on our Kingston Let’s
Talk engagement portal; enhanced messaging using social media channels and
resident publications through our communications team; set up the Street Talk
publication, which was distributed as a newsletter through the engagement
portal; engaged with residents through the streetspace email; taken into account
formal objections raised through the ETMO Process; and we undertook a
stakeholder feedback review to make it easier for stakeholder groups to give their

B4
comment, which included specific sessions with colleagues from the emergency
services. The feedback from those engagement streams can be seen in Annex 2.

9.

In support of the engagement process officers also undertook data collection to
help assess the impacts of the scheme, and it is important to stress and
acknowledge that during the pandemic traffic flows were not at the same levels
as they were before the pandemic struck. Annexes 3 and 4 provide the details of
the traffic, Annex 5 provides some information on cyclists using the facility and air
quality information that was gathered and modelled during the experimental
period is covered in Annex 6.

10.

It is also highlighted that there were variations in traffic patterns as the scheme
settled down, and in addition to this there were a number of times when other
works took place - mainly on the nearby Ewell Road, which may have resulted in
additional traffic displacement. This monitoring of the changes to traffic patterns
before and after implementation of the scheme was gathered to support any
decision being taken to extend the trial, make it permanent or remove it.
Officer commentary and Recommendations

11.

This section of the report will expand on the feedback received to the various
elements of engagement referred to above in Paragraph 8.
Let’s Talk Portal

12.

In terms of the Let’s Talk portal the analysis covers the two key questions asked,
and then covers the themes of comments made by the people who responded;
● How do you feel about the changes we have made in King Charles Road?
(Respondents were asked to state if they were; Very Happy, Happy, Neutral,
Unhappy or Very Unhappy)
● Would you like to see the changes become permanent? (Respondents were
asked to answer; Yes, No or Don’t Know)

13.

The responses have been analysed at three different levels to identify if there
were any variations in the responses at a Boroughwide, Neighbourhood and
Local level and the headline figures are as follows: overall total received 274,
which includes 10 where no location was indicated and 4 where the location
given was outside the borough. 42.3% of respondents indicated they are either
happy or very happy with the scheme and 42% have indicated they would like
the scheme made permanent. 54.7% of respondents have indicated they are
either unhappy or very unhappy with the changes, while the same percentage do
not want the scheme made permanent.

14.

At a neighbourhood level: Total received 203 including the LTN area, which
represents 1.2% of the 16,691 addresses within the neighbourhood. 40.9% of
respondents indicated they are either happy or very happy with the scheme and
41.4% have indicated they would like the scheme made permanent. 55.7% of
respondents have indicated they are either unhappy or very unhappy with the
changes, while the same percentage do not want the scheme made permanent.

15.

At a local level: Total received 127, which represents 3.9% of the 3251 addresses
within the leafleted area as shown on the plan, Annex 1. 45.7% of respondents
indicate they are either happy or very happy with the LTN and 46.5% would like
the scheme made permanent. 49.6% of respondents have indicated they are

B5
either unhappy or very unhappy with the changes and 48.8% do not want the
scheme made permanent.

Streetspace Email Inbox
16.

In terms of the Streetspace inbox of the 45 respondents 11 have also recorded
their views on the Let's Talk Portal. 5 respondents also recorded their views via
the TMO inbox, while 5 recorded their views on all three platforms. Overall, the
response indicates that 24.4% of respondents are happy and 66.7% of
respondents are unhappy with the LTN scheme. The overriding theme of the
comments sit within category 3 (Displacement of traffic, pollution), which 31.1%
of respondents touched on.
ETMO Responses

17.

In response to the ETMO the number of representations received totalled 45. 33
of these have been determined by the borough’s technical operations team to
represent objections, while 5 persons have written in support. 7 comments did
not constitute an objection or support. Examining the objections further there is
an indication that 29 are local to the King Charles Road area, and the officer
recommendations on these objections can be found in paragraphs 45 to 48.
Emergency Services

18.

Representatives of the emergency services covering the borough of Kingston
were invited to comment, along with attending an emergency services
stakeholder working group.

19.

The London Fire Brigade (LFB) - The LFB’’s position regarding the use of
physical barriers throughout the Borough to create LTNs is that this could cause
an increase in traffic levels and access issues, therefore increasing response
times to incidents. For these reasons the LFB does not support their use but
does accept there is a need for the Council to implement these measures in
response to central government guidelines
The LFB would prefer to see the use of alternate measures such as automatic
number plate recognition (ANPR) cameras to enforce LTN’s. Moreover, the LFB
will continue to engage and offer guidance to Kingston council when supplied
with plans on proposed, or changes to, existing LTN measures. The LFB agreed
with a LAS comment at the stakeholder meeting, that as the lockdown measures
are relaxed and road traffic levels increase, further analysis of emergency vehicle
response and any difficulties encountered will need to be discussed and current
LTN’s reviewed.
Where residents complain and claim that emergency vehicles are
delayed/stuck/impinged by LTN measures, data such as times and dates are
useful to gather views and information from crews. To date, we have not received
any information from crews of any delay in attendance to an incident within the
Borough.
The London Ambulance Service (LAS) - LAS commented as follows; We are
opposed to any physical barriers in place on any LTN schemes but would support
enforcement through ANPR cameras with exemptions for emergency service
vehicles. We have worked with various other boroughs across London who have
listened and changed the method of enforcement to the camera system.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

B6
It would not be practical to equip our fleet with these universal keys (to allow
bollards to be unlocked) as it is not always guaranteed that we would have a
local ambulance crew attend if for example call volumes were high and the
nearest vehicle was dispatched from Fulham.
The Metropolitan Police Service (MPS) - The MPS traffic officer commented;
My only view is that the Met Police prefer ‘No motor vehicle’ signage with ANPR
camera enforcement, rather than any physical barrier. This allows emergency
vehicle access without the need to remove barriers, whilst preventing any other
access.

Other Stakeholders
25.

Transport for London (TfL) - No major issues identified at the time of the
meeting with TfL advising that the bus operators have not raised any delay
issues with them. Further journey time data has been requested from TfL, and at
this stage it has not been received.

26.

Kingston Centre for Independent Living (KCIL) - Interest in LTNs generally
and not about a specific scheme. This is in relation to the safety of service users
and how accessible the schemes are for people with wheelchairs and those with
ambulatory difficulties.

27.

Noted that KCIL had Blue Badge Holders who had been asking if they can
access LTN areas. It was noted that the schemes were road closures and as
such did not impede on footways but were designed to improve access for
people walking.

28.

Taxis and Private Hire Vehicles - Nothing specific was raised by the group. It
was noted that depending on where passengers were picked up or dropped off in
relation to the LTN, this might increase the fare, and that this could impact those
using taxicards or wheelchair accessible taxis. While there hadn’t been particular
issues, this might change as we continue to emerge from lockdown and traffic
increases.

29.

Kingston Cycling Campaign (KCC) - LTNs seem to be doing their job. Think
generally these schemes are doing great. Impact particularly noticeable on King
Charles Road.

30.

Officers’ conclusions and recommendations are based on a number of elements,
but the feedback from other stakeholders has been positive on the whole, with an
overriding theme, led by the emergency services, being requests for the method
of traffic control to be changed from a barrier to a prohibition on access enforced
by ANPR cameras, and given the location of the closure it is likely that this will
require the use of 2 cameras, but this will be confirmed as part of the detailed
design should the committee agree this way forward. A change to this method of
control would remove any potential impact on emergency response times, which
was also a concern expressed by other respondents.

31.

Traffic Data
As part of the data collection all immediately affected roads around the scheme
area were included within a monitoring plan, where traffic flows were recorded at
regular intervals during the project. This allowed officers to compare the flows
before the scheme was introduced, and then at different stages during the

experimental period.

B7

32.

As stated above, it is important to highlight at this stage that the pandemic
resulted in significant changes to the daily travel patterns across the country, and
what were considered ‘normal’ traffic flow conditions changed during this period.
There are permanent counters on King Charles Road and Ewell Road, which
have allowed officers to assess traffic levels in the area prior to COVID-19, and
demonstrate traffic had been stable (up to and including 2019).

33.

The data collected indicates that there are some roads which have seen a clear
reduction in traffic flows, which are those to the east of the closure in Derby Road
and King Charles Road eastern end. There are some roads that have seen
increases against the September traffic baseline, in particular Hollyfield Road
and Browns Road. It can be seen that Browns Road flows are comparable to
those levels of traffic pre-COVID-19, but this is not the case for Hollyfield Road,
where it is considered this is most likely displaced traffic from King Charles Road.

34.

It is also noted that Raeburn Avenue traffic flows increased significantly from the
January 21 counts to the April 21 counts, and that when compared to
pre-COVID-19 levels there was still an increase in flows of 15-25%. Whilst this is
quite a significant increase, it is believed that some of this displacement was in
part due to the impacts of road works on the Ewell Road, it is accepted that this
will not be the case for all of the traffic so continued close monitoring will be
required.

35.

It is recommended that further traffic monitoring is put in place specifically for
Hollyfield Road and Raeburn Avenue, so we have more data to help decide
whether further traffic management measures may be needed in these roads.

36.

Air Quality Data
The traffic data that was collected was also used to assess the air quality
impacts, and it should be noted that ideally when assessing air quality robust air
quality monitoring requires a minimum of six months of data, both before and
after the introduction of a highway intervention, to account for the impact of the
weather and other confounding variables. The requirement for these schemes to
be delivered with a very short turnaround meant that it was not possible to collect
adequate baseline air quality monitoring data.

37.

In order to circumvent this challenge the council carried out air quality modelling
around the LTNs, to assess the impact of the change in traffic patterns on air
quality at sensitive receptors, both within and outside the neighbourhoods.

38.

The model uses the traffic data collected before and during implementation of the
LTNs. This data is translated into air pollution emissions using The Department
for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs Emissions - Factor Toolkit. Emissions
are then used to derive concentrations of key pollutants at user-defined sensitive
receptors. Model outputs are verified and adjusted using data from our existing,
permanent network of air quality monitors.

39.

This is a well-established, industry standard methodology that eliminates the
impact of confounding variables, allowing the impact of the LTNs to be isolated
and quantitatively assessed. This modelling was carried out by independent
consultants, who provided feedback on all of the LTN schemes.

B8

40.

Annex 6 provides the outputs from the modelling exercise, with focus on the key
pollutant of concern to air quality; nitrogen dioxide (NO2). From the table it can
be seen that the variations in the Nitrogen Dioxide concentrations were in the
main considered negligible, and even in those roads where we have seen traffic
levels increase - Hollyfield Road, Browns Road and Raeburn Avenue, the data
shows a minor variation of 1.6, 1.1 and 1.6 μg/m³.

41.

There is also some evidence, to show that there is a slight improvement in
conditions in Derby Road. These results have also identified that there have
been slight reduction in NO2 levels at the sites on Ewell Road throughout the
modelling exercise, with those results showing reductions of 2.3, 2.2 and 2.3
μg/m³.

42.

Based on the data that has been received from the modelling assessment, it
supports the recommendations for the current measures to be made permanent.
Furthermore, it is recommended that, subject to Committee’s approval, a further
Air Quality assessment is included in the review report in 12 months time.

43.

44.

Objections to ETMO
The scheme was processed as an ETMO, and so the Committee need to
consider the objections that were raised during the 6 month trial period, and
should members wish to proceed to make the scheme permanent, either in its
current form, or with minor amendments, then the objections received must be
considered, dealt with and set aside. The objections/support received during the
trial period can be found at Annex 7.
The comments of respondents deemed to have written in support of the ETMO,
or to have lodged an objection, can be categorised as follows;

TMO Objection or
Support

Support

Objection

Ref

Issues Highlighted

S1

Highlighting local benefits
including a better walking
and cycling environment

O1

Number of
people

Response

5 noted

Concerns about
displacement of traffic and
increased air pollution on
affected roads

Not founded but
further monitoring
recommended in
relation to a few
22 roads
Noted but policy
supports the
6 intervention

Objection

O2

Concerns about increased
travel times and/or delays

Objecton

O3

Concerns about safety of
road users

4 Not founded

Objection

O4

Combination of O2&O3

3 As above

Objection

O5

Concerns about impact on
emergency services

Not founded. ANPR
3 will mitigate

B9
Objectrion

Objection

O6

No traffic issues before
introduction of modal filter

1 Not agreed

O7

Added to impact of
recently installed cycle
lanes on Ewell Road

Noted, ongoing
monitoring
1 recommended

45.

Officers have reviewed the objections and consider that they can be set aside.
The traffic data analysis and the air quality report have indicated that from the
whole area only Hollyfield Road and Raeburn Avenue have seen increased traffic
flows, which need to be further monitored and reviewed, but the general findings
are that, overall, there is less traffic on the local road network.

46.

There is some evidence to show that traffic flows at the north end of King Charles
Road have increased but there are existing cut through routes that affect this
section of road using Surbiton Hill Park and Elmbridge Avenue, so it is not
possible to attribute all of the traffic here to the LTN scheme. The objections that
state the scheme will create displacement/delay issues are therefore not
substantiated.

47.

The data provided by the air quality modelling demonstrates that the proposals
have had only negligible impact on the area, but as recommended above
(paragraph 42), the exercise will be repeated as part of the 12 month review. Any
objections that relate to air quality issues can therefore be set aside.

48.

Whilst the emergency services did not raise specific objections to the current
measures, with the removable bollard in place, it was clear they would prefer a
scheme that replaces the closure with ANPR cameras to address their concerns.
This is part of the recommendations, and as such any objections that reference
this as an issue have been dealt with.

Other headings
Legislation
49.

The works to be undertaken to highways in due course, as set out in the report,
are within the Council’s powers in the Local Government Act 1972, the Highways
Act 1980 and the Localism Act 2011.

50.

The Committee will need to consider the objections raised during the ETMO
process and if they wish to proceed with the scheme a decision is required to
assess those objections and set them aside prior to undertaking the statutory
process of making a permanent TMO. The officer assessment of those
objections is set out in paragraphs 45 to 48.

Timescale
51.

Subject to Committee approval, officers will progress to a permanent TMO, and
this will be timed to coincide with the introduction of the ANPR cameras. It is
likely that this will take 12-16 weeks.

Financial Context
52.

The council is operating in an increasingly challenging financial environment.
Kingston faced a number of financial challenges in the medium to longer term -

B10
even before the COVID-19 outbreak, which has further added to these
challenges. The economic and financial consequences of the pandemic, growing
demand for services, and limited government grant funding make it difficult to find
adequate funds to meet the borough's needs.

53.

The future of local government finance faces a significant level of uncertainty.
The impact of the Fair Funding Review and a future review of business rates is
currently unknown, and the lasting effects of COVID-19 on our residents, local
businesses and the Council itself remain uncertain.

54.

Despite these challenges the council has a drive and commitment to ensure it is
doing the best for residents and communities

Financial and Resource Implications
55.

TfL funding is currently uncertain, but officers advise that, should the Committee
wish to proceed and make the scheme permanent, a bid has been submitted to
TfL to secure the necessary capital funding. It is anticipated that the outcome of
the bid will be known prior to the Committee, and an update will be provided on
the night. It is however considered that this scheme is a borough priority and will
be promoted as such in any discussion with TfL Should the funding not be
forthcoming, the committee can ask officers to identify other funds internally,
although nothing is currently identified, or to proceed with a scheme without
ANPR cameras for the time being.

56.

There are ongoing operating costs in relation to ANPR cameras. These will be
offset to some extent by any fines issued, but net operating costs will still need to
be funded from within existing budgets in Parking Services and Highways.

Legal Implications
57.

Under section 159 of the GLA Act 1999, financial assistance provided by TfL
must be for a purpose which, in TfL’s opinion, is conducive to the provision of
safe, integrated, efficient and economic transport facilities or services to, from or
within Greater London.

58.

Where schemes are approved and receive funding, all procedures, including
consultation, will be undertaken in accordance with the relevant statutory
provisions and best practice.

59.

Any legal implications associated with the Statutory TMO process have been
considered as part of this committee report that covers objections received to
that process.

Risk Assessment
60.

A detailed risk assessment of the scheme will be carried out should members
resolve to make the scheme permanent. During the experimental trial period the
scheme was monitored regularly to allow any day to day risks to be assessed. It
is noted that at the start of the scheme additional advanced signage was needed
to ensure that drivers were given sufficient warning so that they could make
decisions at an early stage about how they might continue their journeys.

Equalities Analysis

61.

62.

B11
Whilst there is an overarching EqIA in place for the LIP and neighbourhood
projects, a supporting EqIA has been undertaken for this project has been
completed and is attached at Annex 7. It is noted that this document was not
prepared in advance of the scheme but at that stage, officers, having reviewed
the existing LIP EqIA, considered that it was unlikely that the measures would
disproportionately impact anyone with protected characteristics.

As a part of the 6 month trial period officers approached Stakeholder Groups to
understand any issues that they had and welcomed input from them. A
workshop was held, and stakeholders invited to attend and share their feedback,
and an interesting point to note was raised, whereby colleagues from KCIL
highlighted that many of their members had actually been shielding for most of
the experimental trial period, and as such would not have experienced its impact.
It was agreed that further sessions with KCIL would be set up to revisit the
scheme, and feedback from those sessions will be incorporated into the 12
month review.

Health Implications
63.

LTN schemes are embracing a different approach, and by encouraging all
aspects of sustainable travel modes within and through an area, will have
positive health implications for residents, through promoting walking, cycling and
the use of public transport. It is therefore anticipated that the scheme will have a
positive impact on people's health and wellbeing locally.

Road Network Implications
64.

The Council has a statutory responsibility under the Traffic Management Act
2004 to maintain road network operations on its strategic roads. Traffic
movements have been monitored as part of the scheme trial period, and it can be
seen in Annexes 3 and 4 that there has been limited impact on the main road
network.

65.

It has been highlighted that there has been an impact on Hollyfeld Road and
Raeburn Avenue, and if the scheme is approved officers will continue to monitor
these impacts and assess what mitigating measures may need to be considered,
such as yellow lines to provide new passing places or additional traffic measures.

Sustainability Implications
66.

The overall assessment of the sustainability implications for this LTN is that there
will be a positive impact on the environment resulting from such healthy street
projects, as they aim to encourage mode shift towards less polluting forms of
transport.

Background papers
None other than those referred to in this report.
Author of report - Ian Price - Team Leader, Strategy and Commissioning
ian.price@kingston.gov.uk

B12

Experimental Road
Closure

© Crown copyright [and database rights] 2021 OS 100019285

AnnexA1
Annex
LTN Area Map
Scale:

1:7,000

Date Printed:
© Crown Copyright

30/06/2021

±

ANNEX 2
PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT TABLES, CHARTS AND GRAPHS
Prefix LT = Let’s Talk Portal
Prefix SS = Street Space Inbox
Prefix TM = Traffic Management Order
B13

Table LT1: List of Full Theme Descriptions
Theme

Theme Description

1. Indicating support
and highlighting local
benefits

Respondents who highlighted local benefits, such as a better or safer environment for cycling and walking, improved amenity of very
local facilities, shops, playgrounds etc. Reduced environmental impact, especially at night.

2a. Indicating support
and mentioning further
enhancements

Respondents who requested further changes to the experimental measures, including requests for schemes to be expanded to other
roads in the area.

2b. Indicating support if Respondents who indicated that they may support the scheme if there were further changes to the experimental measures.
amendments are made

B14

3. Indicating opposition Respondents who take issue with the displacement of traffic onto the surrounding road network including perceived increases in
based on traffic
congestion, along with impacts on pollution and safety, with some referring to routes including local schools.
displacement and/or
pollution

4. Indicating opposition Respondents who take issue about increases in travel times including to local amenities or work, along with concerns about the impact
based on travel
on safety due to a potential increase in response times for the emergency services and access problems for deliveries or other
distance and/or delays services.
5. Indicating opposition Respondents who generally take issue with the scheme quoting a combination of the issues highlighted in themes 3&4.
based on a combination
of 3 & 4
6. Highlighting lack of
prior engagement
and/or supporting
evidence

6. Respondents highlighting a lack of prior communication or consultation, including those quoting a lack of supporting evidence or
data, environmental, equality etc.

7. Stating there were no 7. Respondents who consider there were no issues with traffic levels within the LTN area including those who consider that resources,
prior traffic issues in the and funding, would be better deployed elsewhere.
area
8.Stating that the
8. Respondents who consider the combined impact of the LTN along with nearby scheme(s) reducing capacity on alternate routes is
impacts of the LTN and excessive.
nearby schemes are
excessive

B15

B16

Neutral 1.8%

No Answer 1.0%

B17

DON'T KNOW 3.3%

B18

B19

Neutral 2.5%

No Answer 0.9%

B20

DON’T KNOW 2.9%

B21

B22

Neutral 3.1%

No Answer 1.6%

B23

DON'T KNOW 4.7%

B24

B25

Table LT2: Let's Talk Portal - Response by Roads Within the LTN Area (N.B. Roads with no responses are not included, see list below)
How do you feel about the changes?
Roadname

Happy

Neutral

No Answer

Would you like the changes made permanent?
Unhappy

Very Happy

Very
Unhappy

Grand Total

3
1

1

1

6

NO

YES

Grand Total

6
1
2
9
4
1
1
2
1

1

7
1
2
22
4
4
1
6
3
1
1
4
2
3
1
2
8
25
3
1
4
1
1
1
2
3
5
4
3
1
1
127

1
3
1
3
1
2
3
3
2
1
1
1
1
2
1
2
4
1
1
1
62

10
2
4
2
1
1
1

5
22
1
2
1

2
3
1

59

Number of
Addresses

Response
Rate (%)

134
43
61
92
98
167
8
63
50
23
12
24
25
102
22
152
41
473
88
47
90
31
55
93
77
95
42
24
314
38
22

5.2%
2.3%
3.3%
23.9%
4.1%
2.4%
12.5%
9.5%
6.0%
4.3%
8.3%
16.7%
8.0%
2.9%
4.5%
1.3%
19.5%
5.3%
3.4%
2.1%
4.4%
3.2%
1.8%
1.1%
2.6%
3.2%
11.9%
16.7%
1.0%
2.6%
4.5%

B26

Alexandra Drive
1
2
4
7
Alpha Road
1
1
Avenue South
1
1
2
Beaconsfield Road
2
2
2
8
8
22
Berrylands
1
3
4
Berrylands Road
2
2
4
Birchington Road
1
1
Broomfield Road
1
3
2
6
Browns Road
2
1
3
Chiltern Drive
1
1
Courtlands Road
1
1
Derby Road
1
3
4
Gordon Road
1
1
2
Hobill Walk
1
2
3
Hollyfield Road
1
1
Howard Road
2
2
King Charles Crescent
5
3
8
King Charles Road
3
1
2
18
1
25
Kings Drive
1
2
3
Manor Crescent
1
1
Manor Drive
1
2
1
4
Paragon Grove
1
1
Park Road
1
1
Parklands
1
1
Pine Gardens
2
2
Queens Drive
2
1
3
Regent Road
1
2
2
5
Seymour Gardens
4
4
The Avenue
1
1
1
3
The Retreat
1
1
Warwick Grove
1
1
Grand Total
12
4
2
11
46
52
127
Roads with no responses - Adams Close, Britannia Road, Christ Church Road, Etwell Place, Fulmar Close, Mayberry Place,
Pine Walk (Part), Smith Street, South Place, Surbiton Hill Park (Part), The Ridge & Vine Close.

DONT
KNOW

B27

Neutral 4.5%

No Indication 4.4%

B28

B29

Sutton

B30

Annex 4: Average Daily 2-Way Traffic Flows Collected Over a 7 Day (1 Week) Period
Pre-COVID

Site
Road name
No

Pre-LTN (3-9 September
2020)

Indicative
Average
Average
Daily Traffic
Daily Traffic

With LTN (10-16 October 2020)

With LTN (25-31 January/13-18
February 2021)

With LTN (19 to 25 April 2021)

% Change
From
Pre-COVID

Average
Daily Traffic

% Change
From
Pre-COVID

% Change
From
Pre-LTN

Average
Daily Traffic

% Change
From
Pre-COVID

% Change
From
Pre-LTN

Average
Daily Traffic

% Change
From
Pre-COVID

% Change
From
Pre-LTN

King Charles Road (North of Ewell Road)

4811

3335

-30.69%

692

-85.61%

-79.24%

508

-89.45%

-84.77%

914

-80.99%

-72.58%

2

Derby Road

605

350

-42.17%

220

-63.59%

-37.04%

166

-72.49%

-52.43%

93

-84.58%

-73.34%

3

Broomfield Road

407

385

-5.34%

334

-17.94%

-13.31%

241

-40.79%

-37.45%

333

-18.11%

-13.50%

4

Beaconsfield Road

956

527

-44.84%

671

-29.86%

27.17%

270

-71.80%

-48.88%

467

-51.15%

-11.43%

5

Hollyfield Road

2476

1971

-20.38%

3412

37.80%

73.07%

2366

-4.44%

20.01%

4311

74.13%

118.70%

6

Browns Road

1436

793

-44.76%

1254

-12.64%

58.13%

936

-34.83%

17.97%

1425

-0.80%

79.58%

7

King Charles Road (South of Berrylands)

4300

2749

-36.07%

1921

-55.32%

-30.11%

1131

-73.70%

-58.87%

3270

-23.95%

18.95%

8

King Charles Road (North of Berrylands)

3954

2999

-24.15%

2251

-43.07%

-24.94%

1477

-62.65%

-50.75%

3517

-11.04%

17.29%

9

Berrylands Road (East of KCR)

No data

3784

-

4247

-

12.25%

2928

-

-22.61%

4826

-

27.55%

10 Berrylands Road (West of KCR)

6154

4997

-18.80%

5325

-13.46%

6.58%

3643

-40.79%

-27.08%

6037

-1.89%

20.82%

11 King Charles Road (North of Surbiton Hill Park)

8055

3050

-62.13%

2744

-65.94%

-10.05%

1997

-75.21%

-34.53%

3975

-50.65%

30.31%

12 Alexandra Drive (East of Queens Drive)

1884

1337

-29.04%

1379

-26.80%

3.16%

848

-55.00%

-36.58%

1519

-19.38%

13.61%

13 Raeburn Avenue (North of Elgar Avenue)

5452

-

-

-

-

-

3688

-32.35%

6831

25.28%

-

14 Raeburn Avenue (South of Elgar Avenue)

4944

-

-

-

-

-

3641

-26.36%

5716

15.64%

-

15 Ewell Road (Near South Bank)

23881

-

-

-

-

-

-

15845

-33.65%

-

16 Ewell Road (South-East of King Charles Road)

28179

26754

-5.06%

25339

-10.08%

-5.29%

19577

22596

-19.81%

-15.54%

This period was just
before reintroduction of
lockdown restrictions.

-30.53%

-26.83%

Lockdown restrictions in place with three Second period of full lockdown
tier system. Kingston was in tier 3 for
restrictions.
much of the time with the most severe
restrictions in place.

B31

1

Transition out of lockdown with
restrictions currently programmed to end
on 19 July 2021.

Known data issues, the effect of these is likely to result in marginally higher or lower average flows depending on the balance between workdays and weekend data. Most of the affected data is from the periods where
the information has been used to give a picture of how flows were affected by travel restrictions at the time the data was collected and is not critical to the conclusions within the report. The data for site 4 (Beaconsfield
Road) during April is based on three working days and is likely to be higher than a full week average, and hence the indicated reduction in traffic flow compared to the pre-covid data is likely to be less pronounced.
September, Site 8 - A vehicle was parked on the tubes for three days and although the count period was extended we had to calculate the average flow from data covering the weekend and three workdays.
January, Sites 9 & 11 - A vehicle was parked on the tubes at both of these locations for most workdays and the weekend. As we had no usable data, the locations had to be resurveyed 12 days later when we got 6 days
of flows including the weekend.
January, Site 13 - A counter fault led to a loss of data on Friday and Saturday. The average flow had to be based on 4 workdays and the Sunday.
January, Site 14 - A vehicle was parked on the tubes for the whole week and as we had no usable data the location was resurveyed 12 days later. There was also an issue with the resurvey with a loss of 3 days and the
average flow had to be based on two working days and the weekend.
April, Site 4 - A vehicle was parked on the tubes for two workdays and the weekend. The average flow had to be based on 3 working days.

B32

Annex 5

B33

B34

Table CD1: Daily (Working Day) Average Flows, 08 February 2021 to 13 June 2021
Week Starting
Mon 8 Mon 15 Mon 22 Mon 1
Feb
Feb
Feb
Mar

Mon 8 Mon 15 Mon 22 Mon 29 Mon 5 Mon 12 Mon 19 Mon 26 Mon 3 Mon 10 Mon 17 Mon 24 Mon 31 Mon 7
Mar
Mar
Mar
Mar
Apr
Apr
Apr
Apr
May
May
May
May
May
Jun

To Berrylands

77

130

168

156

156

173

188

218

159

184

241

225

178

206

172

123

134

185

To Ewell Rd

94

136

185

172

161

193

206

230

169

189

258

231

184

219

162

109

142

186

Mon 12
Apr

Mon 19
Apr

Mon 26
Apr

Mon 3
May

Mon 10
May

Mon 17
May

Mon 24
May

Mon 31
May

Mon 7
Jun

Table CD2: Daily (Weekend) Average Flows, 08 February 2021 to 13 June 2021
Week Starting
Mon 8
Feb

To Berrylands
To Ewell Rd

Mon 15
Feb

Mon 22
Feb

Mon 1
Mar

78

153

166

142.5

106.5

167

191

157.5

Mon 8
Mar

Mon 15
Mar

Mon 22
Mar

Mon 29
Mar

Mon 5
Apr

108.5

147

134

164

137.5

164

160.5

142.5

134

96.5

94.5

39.5

119.5

119

112

172

152.5

179.5

137.5

200.5

167

158.5

129.5

105

92.5

31

127

127.5

B35

B36
Annex 6 - Air Quality Summary Table

Annual average predicted NO2 concentration results (2020/2021)
Name Road

Pre-Sche
With
With
me
[October] [January]
(μg/m³)
(μg/m³)
(μg/m³)

With
[April]
(μg/m³)

April – Percenta Impact of
Pre
ge
change
Scheme change
(μg/m³)
relative
to AQS
(%)

R24

King Charles
Rd

23.6

23.5

22.3

24.6

1.0

2.4

Negligible

R25

Berrylands
Rd

28.2

29.4

26.4

28.7

0.5

1.4

Negligible

R26

Berrylands
Rd

24.0

24.4

23.2

24.9

0.9

2.3

Negligible

R27

King Charles
Rd

24.3

23.8

22.5

25.8

1.5

3.8

Negligible

R28

Hollyfield Rd

22.4

23.4

22.6

24.0

1.6

3.9

Negligible

R29

King Charles
Rd

23.1

22.4

21.6

23.5

0.4

1.0

Negligible

R30

King Charles
Cres

21.6

22.1

21.7

22.6

1.0

2.6

Negligible

R31

Browns Rd

21.9

22.4

22.1

23.0

1.1

2.7

Negligible

R32

Beaconsfield
Rd

24.2

24.4

23.2

23.9

-0.3

-0.8

Negligible

R33

Beaconsfield
Rd

24.2

24.0

23.3

23.7

-0.5

-1.1

Negligible

R34

Broomfield
Rd

30.9

30.6

28.5

29.4

-1.5

-3.8

Negligible

R35

Broomfield
Rd

24.0

23.4

23.1

23.3

-0.7

-1.7

Negligible

R36

Derby Rd

33.2

32.7

30.6

31.6

-1.6

-4.0

Slight

R37

Derby Rd

24.9

23.7

23.3

23.4

-1.4

-3.6

Negligible

R38

Ewell Rd
(A240)

37.5

37.0

34.0

35.2

-2.3

-5.7

Slight

R39

Raeburn Ave

26.3

26.3

26.1

27.9

1.6

4.1

Negligible

R40

Alexandra Dr

20.1

20.1

19.7

20.4

0.3

0.7

Negligible

R41

Alexandra Dr

23.1

23.1

22.8

23.2

0.1

0.2

Negligible

R42

Ewell Rd
(A240)

38.8

38.3

35.0

36.6

-2.2

-5.6

Slight

R43

Ewell Rd
(A240)

30.8

29.0

27.6

28.4

-2.3

-5.9

Slight

Red rows highlight adverse impacts of change. Green rows highlight beneficial impacts of change.
Bold denotes exceedance of the annual mean Air Quality Standard (AQS) for NO2. Any
discrepancies in values are due to rounding

Annex 7 - Redacted List of ETMO Responses
Object /
Support /
Neither
object nor
support
Objection

Comments

B37

This proposal is nothing more than a road block that cuts off access to Kingston via Villiers Avenue and Hawks Road. It will
funnel even more traffic into surrounding roads having to make detours and into the Ewell Road. This will slow this traffic due
to cars entering and leaving Hollyfield, Beaconsfield, Browns Road, Broomfield and Derby Road to avoid this block. Pollution
will rise and due to slow moving vehicles and the air quality around the nursery on the corner of Broomfield and Ewell road
will decline. No consultation has occurred in advance concerning this plan. It will also discriminate against the disabled who
do not walk or cycle and rely on car access. This is an ill thought out project with many unintended consequences and hidden
costs.
Neither object I am writing in regards to the plans to install a barrier preventing traffic passing through King Charles road.We are a local
nor support
business. We rely heavily on trade generated through passing vehicles/ motorists throughout the day. Recent months have
been tough due to the COVID 19 outbreak and now we have this. I am wondering what the full impact of the plans will be on
us. I would very much appreciate some correspondence regarding these plans and what support Kingston council can offer
us a small business which will no doubt lose much needed custom due to the measures being enforced.
Objection
I write with reference to the introduction of barriers on King Charles Rd, between Hollyfield Rd and Beaconsfield Rd.
First of all, this should have been discussed with residents affected by the changes, no matter the timescale. Imposing major
change to traffic flow on a neighbourhood with no consultation is not the way to go about things.
Secondly, have you thought through the implications? Residents from Derby Rd, Brumfield Rd, Beaconsfield Rd, and those
on the southern end of King Charles Rd, are now going to have to turn right into Ewell Rd to go in the Kingston direction, no
mean feat given the heavy traffic on Ewell Rd at most times of the day. Before, the turn could be made from Hollyfield Rd,
which is much easier as there are lights which control traffic flow. I hope the effect of this will be closely monitored as I believe
that increased traffic turning right on this road is potentially dangerous.
Also, residents on King Charles Rd north of the barriers will now have to turn up Hollyfield Rd and turn left onto Ewell Rd to go
towards Tolworth. This will inevitably increase traffic on Hollyfield Rd, which is congested enough through the day with cars
parked on both sides of the road. And at the end of the day, I can’t see what blocking off a 100yd section of road is going to
achieve anyhow. Rat runs are going to occur anyhow down Beaconsfield Rd, the only business there is a coffee shop, and
you’re effectively shunting more traffic onto already congested Ewell Rd. I’d be grateful if you could take these points on
board.

Objection

I would like to raise objection to this proposal on the basis that
- lack of evidence to justify requirement
- impact on wider business
- potential to negatively impact on wider road network
- has not been properly consulted
Neither object With the closure of King Charles Road between Beaconfields Ave and Hollyfield Rd how do intend to stop both Bloomfield
nor support
and Derby Roads being used as rat runs to King Charles Road when there is heavy traffic towards Tolworth Broadway on
Ewell Road which occurs regularly? Both of these road are residential and narrow with a large number of children living on
them. As I live on Derby Road and experience cars regular using it to avoid waiting in traffic on Ewell Road I can only see this
becoming worse. Under Health and Safety regulations you should be responsible for any accidents that happen on both
Bloomfield and Derby roads. Do you not think a survey should be done prior to making the changes rather than after?

B38

Objection

Firstly, as a Berrylands resident of 20 years, Kings Charles Road does NOT constitute a rat run in anyway, shape or form.
These proposed new barriers will cause an extreme amount of extra traffic & pollution on all roads leading to & including the
whole length of the already congested Ewell Road.
Together with the new & very under used cycle lanes on the Ewell Road, even more additional traffic will occur to all the
busses not being able to pull in & pick up their passengers. Both Beaconsfield & Hollywood Road will then become rat runs
with all the danger to pedestrians including many children who live on Beaconsfield Rd.
The traffic & increased pollution on Ewell Road will run from Surbiton down to Tolworth & visa versa back to Surbiton &
Kingston.
Yet another critical point to consider is the free flow of traffic for emergency vehicles especially the fire engines based at
Surbiton Fire Station on the Ewell Road. For any fire engines (as well as ambulances & police cars) going towards Tolworth,
any delays travelling towards Tolworth as well as Kingston could cause severe delays. Speed matters to these guys & with
the increased traffic & as well as the severely reduced road width; lives could very well be lost !!!
I've lived in Berrylands for over 20 years & at no time have I ever seen major traffic issues on King Charles Road. Also, as a
keen cyclist, I have never any experienced traffic issues on King Charles Road.
There is also the issue of a new & popular coffee shop call OTC Coffee on the corner of KCR & Beaconsfield, which will no
doubt lose all its passing trade & thus could potentially force its closure. This very popular establishment which opened in
2019 has already forged great links with the local community & employs a number of local people. This is exactly the type of
small business the Government is trying to encourage. Surely Kingston Council's Low Traffic 'experiment' doesn't want to be
the catalyst for its permanent closure ?
It is vital that Kingston Council hold a meeting to discuss this 'disastrous experiment' BEFORE the trial which will make local
peoples lives a misery, cause massive amounts of additional journey times & pollution !!
I look forward to hearing back from you as a matter of urgency.

Neither object I’ve asked the council through several routes for this information as community consultation and communications on these
nor support
changes has been so limited and lacking in transparency.
1. I’m interested in what measures you’re putting in place to ensure that nearby local streets (such as King Charles Crescent
/ Browns Rd) don’t end up with displaced traffic from King Charles Road simply diverted onto our own residential streets, with
a particular focus on pedestrian safety.
2. Can you share the modelling for how you expect traffic flows to change as a result of this trial.
3. Can you also share what monitoring you’ll be putting in place for the trial period, and the evaluation criteria and decisionmaking process for deciding on whether to continue post-trial.
Neither object Can I ask whose bright idea it was to impose low traffic scheme on a road that people depend on to get in and around
nor support
Alexandra area?
As a keen cyclist, even I don't agree with such a scheme. Not everyone in my family such as my wife and toddler can cycle
and are not in a healthy state to do so. They depend on access to these roads in a car.
As a person that pays an extortionate amount of council tax I don't understand why you are using this money making scheme
to further punish us.
I object strongly to the placement of the closure of King Charles Road. I live in Derby Road and to get to Berrylands I will
either have to turn my car round and then turn right into the Ewell Road. This is very dangerous especially when the bus lane
is in operation. Alternatively and safer I drive to the end of King Charles Road then turn left into Ewell Road, also dangerous
and then turn left into Elgar Avenue and drive a long way round to reach Berrylands. Either option is dangerous and will
increase pollution. I cannot walk as I am elderly with a severe back condition. If the intention is to close off King Charles
Road, which I object to, a safer option would be to close the Road at the beginning of the Railway Bridge. Preferably the road
should be left open with additional traffic calming measures. The planned closure will also make for difficulties for bin
collections and fire engines and ambulances. Taking such a drastic action as closing a road without consultation is totally
unacceptable.

Objection

I would like to put in an official complaint against the new low traffic measures on King Charles Road, Surbiton. I live on
Beaconsfield Road (a narrow road, the width of one car) and all traffic that would normally travel along King Charles Road is
now forming a traffic jam on it. This has happened everyday since the new measures where put in place. It is having the
complete opposite effect of the desired outcome.
Beaconsfield Road is a residential street with many families and the traffic jam is going to increase pollution and noise for the
whole street.
These measures must be removed as they are causing serious problems for the surrounding residents. There is also a
petition that has been signed by over 1000 people to complain about these measures:
https://www.change.org/p/transport-for-london-prevent-forced-road-closure-on-king-charles-road
Please can you let me know what can be done about this?

B39

Objection

Support

Objection

B40

I wanted to comment on how positive I am about the traffic scheme recently introduced across the borough but specifically
King Charles Road. In terms of safety issues the benefits are obvious. Unfortunately
the road was often used by cars shooting off the A3 and speeding towards Kingston. Probably to avoid the lights on the Ewell
Road. It’s lovely to see an increase in school children cycling to Hollyfield rather catch the bus. Users of the play park no
longer need to listen to traffic, breath fumes and so on. The corner coffee shop benefits from offering a safer spot to queue up
for coffees and ice creams. As a resident of Beaconsfield Road I haven’t noticed an increase in vehicles speeding down the
road- there always were some but doesn’t appear to be more of a problem. I’m sure traffic monitoring will confirm.
I am writing about the ETMO TMO-P306 Experimental Road Closure King Charles Road, Surbiton
The Kingston Upon Thames (Prescribed Routes)(Amendment No.22) Experimental Traffic Order 2020.
Paragraph 3 of the order states
'....essential in the interest of the expeditious, convenient and safe movement of traffic or for providing suitable and adequate
parking facilities on the highway or for preserving or improving the amenities of the area through which any road affected by
the Order runs....
Please answer the following questions?
1/. Has the Council considered the effect of this order displacing traffic onto Ewell Road A240 at a time when the already
disruptive Go Cycle lane works are taking place?
2/. Has the Council considered the effect of this order displacing traffic which wish to enter Berrylands by having to turn right
from Ewell Road A240 onto Hollyfield Road at what has always been a dangerous turning at traffic lights?
3/. Has the Council considered the effect of this causing queuing traffic whilst the bus stop at this junction remains in the
same place, meaning traffic cannot procede up Ewell Road?
4/. Has the Council considered the effect of this order on additional traffic, pollution and increasing the risk to pupils, parents,
staff and others using Dysart School (a special needs school)?
5/. Has the Council considered the effect of this order on users of Surbiton Health Centre?
6/. Why do I have to be signed in to be able to respond to a survey about Kingston's Low Traffic Neighbourhoods to
comment on this temporary order?
A realistic examination especially during the rush hour, school opening and closing times would show that the temporary
order has already failed in its objectives as above.
I would urge the Council to consider revoking this order at soonest.

Support

Objection

B41

Objection

This is just a quick note to thank you all for the modal road closure on King Charles Road. (That sentence could be read as
being sarcastic(!) but it isn’t, I can assure you!)
We live on Beaconsfield Road and I am sure that the level of traffic in our street has reduced (although the results of the
monitoring will prove or disprove this). Given that our road is very densely populated, the reduced pollution will benefit more
people than those negatively affected by the displaced traffic (although I believe that road closures reduce traffic rather than
simply displace it).
Having a traffic-free route to the park is also great for kids on the street and for those who walk down our road to get to the
park. The zebra crossing, in our experience, doesn’t provide a totally safe crossing point as the odd car doesn’t stop. The top
of our road feels much more relaxed and the cafe customers can spill out onto the road which should help their business and
enable people to stop and chat in more space.
I also think that just seeing the road closure will make people think (consciously or subconsciously) about whether other car
journeys are absolutely necessary.
I refer you to the below petition on Change.org which currently has 1275 signatures against the closure of King Charles Road.
This has created massive traffic issues in the area and the majority of residents in Berrylands are both inconvenienced with
travel and very annoyed at the change. Please remedy ASAP.
https://www.change.org/p/transport-for-london-prevent-forced-road-closure-on-king-charles-road?
cs_tk=AkQqvhobofBaRBQzWF8AAXicyyvNyQEABF8BvEsrxDmzDO07UL9BUNL5SxY%
3D&utm_campaign=9032096d7d6241a9b25403b15d952857&utm_content=initial_v0_0_1&utm_medium=email&utm_source=
recruit_sign_digest&utm_term=cs
My wife and I are frequent visitors to Berrylands. We often use one of various options via King Charles Road to and from the
A3 at Tolworth. The stretch you are blocking off was already slow because of traffic calming filters and parked cars. It's no
more a 'rat run' than Hollyfield Road. Hollyfield is itself congested due to parked cars. You are simply wasting motorists' time
by transferring congestion onto another busy link road. The change was implemented without consultation as to the change
proposed and the effect of implementing your option. Quite appalling. There must be a cost. What is it? How reversible is the
implementation? What is that cost? I trust that the cost of reversing this nonsense will not be an argument for retaining it. I
contributed to the petition which challenged the 'proposal', before you implemented it. Nearly 1300 people objected. You
MUST take all 1300 objections into account during you later review? Otherwise many may think their voices have already
been heard and are being taken into account. Your website talks about only listening to objections registered during the
implementation 'trial'. That's not good enough. (Your publicity promotes scooters and cycles. I would rather this King Charles
money was spent teaching and controlling scooter-users and cyclists about the importance of keeping off pavements, where
they frequently scare and bully pedestrians. There is going to be a serious accident soon. The cyclists' response on the
pavement is often arrogant when challenged: 'Sorry, can't hear, can't hear' as a 15-year old pushes on and forces elderly
pensioners back to the side of the narrow pavement.)
NB I have also logged this objection/protest on Kingston Let's Talk in your survey. I am confused at to which is the correct
objection method.

Objection

B42

I would like to object strongly to the installation and positioning of the barrier in relation to the above order.
The situation regarding rat-runs along King Charles Road is exacerbated and created by the actions of traffic management in
adjacent roads.
The provision of Cycle Lanes along Ewell road has clearly added to the slowing and increased volume along the stretch
between Tolworth Broadway and Surbiton Hill / Lamberts Road.
The lcarraigeways for buses, cars and trucks, essential as a main through route, have been narrowed and reduced to a single
lane in both north and south directions.
Consequently, when a bus or good vehicle stops for passengers or loading nothing can overtake safely.
This slows traffic movement and vehicles are stationary for a long period of time. It is well known that vehicles idling and
running at slow speed causes more fuel pollution as combustion engines are less efficient at idle. We have some
considerable time before all vehicles are equipped with stop / start technology or are entirely electrically driven.
The cycle lanes on both sides of the road is an excess use of space and the narrower pedestrian footpaths do not permit
good social distancing for pedestrians.
The north bound cycle way is completed but cyclists still persist in cycling on the road.
During my use of the Ewell Road I have experienced issues as a pedestrian and a road use, both car and motorcycle.
A further concern is that RBK are spending huge amounts of funds on schemes that are not subject to thorough public
consultation.
With proper public consultation at the end of the 6 month trial period I call upon the Council to remove this barrier and review
the cycle lanes along the Ewell Road.
Objection
I would like to submit a formal objection to this.
Surbiton - King Charles Road - TMO-P306
This installation has personally caused me inconvenience as a local resident - it continues to do so. Moreso it’s impact will be
contradictory to the climate emergency motion because it does and will in fact add mileage to my travels as well as others
who wish to reconnect with Ewell Road - my satellite navigation system confirms this via the new route I have to take as a
result of this installation.
Whilst I understand you may not have had to consult before implementation it would have beneficial and helpful to inform
local residents before the decision was made. I reside just a few streets down from this new blockage and was introduced to it
in a most unpleasant way. I look forward to your reply. Under the FOI act grateful if you can tell me how many objections you
have received in regards to this scheme till date.
Neither object I have completed the survey regarding the traffic scheme above. I am dismayed to find out the scheme will run for 6 months
nor support
before any feedback is acted on.
I am a resident of Beaconsfield Road, this morning a van driver deliberately swerved at me and tried to kill me. I have not
reported this to the police as it happened so quick the only thing I can report is a silver van.
I am writing to request immediate traffic enforcement as every morning since the traffic management scheme has been in
place Beaconsfield road has turned into a racetrack full of angry drivers.
Could you also let me know any local MPs who are reviewing this project.

Objection

B43

I am dismayed and shocked that you have implemented this blockage of a through road.
You must by now be aware of the congestion that this is causing and frustration this is causing road users and local residents.
You have basically shifted the dispersed traffic from a balance of two roads (Ewell Road and King Charles Road) all onto
Ewell Road. Take a look at the tailbacks through the day and the absolute mayhem you have caused in Hollyfield Road.
The result of this is added pollution as the cars sit going nowhere or crawl very slowly. Not good is it?
The changes you have made to Ewell Road again are ill thought at best and paramount to an outright attack on the law
abiding, tax paying motorist.
This WILL be remembered come the local council elections.
I strongly advise you to revisit this abomination and take heed like Ealing did of the anger of the local residents and withdraw
this blockage post haste.
Further to this before you think of any other 'Traffic calming' measures, think about the people you are meant to represent.
The tax paying residents who have a vote.
In addition to this why when you are agreeing planning with developers don't you get them to pay into a fund that better
distributes traffic. An example of this would be at Tolworth.
There are developments with Lidl, The Tolworth Tower and ex-MOD site which will be laid over to 700 homes. So why not get
them all to agree to pay into the fund and build a flyover starting from the Ewell Road petrol station and going onto Kingston
Road and from the Railway station going the opposite way. This would greatly help move the traffic that simple wanted to go
'straight' and not onto the A3. Easing traffic flow and pollution even with the increase numbers these developments will
inevitably bring.
You really need to start thinking more about the whole road use not just cyclists and buses.
This is simply not good enough and your blatant disregard and absolute dislike for the motorist must cease now before you
cause with alienation and anger.
You look forward to your considered response and acknowledgment of the facts I have laid out.

Objection

B44

I’ve completed your survey about the modal barriers that you recently installed on between Hollyfield and King Charles Roads
(TMO-P306) but I also want to register a formal complaint.
Since the barriers were put in place, we’ve seen an increase in traffic on Beaconsfield Road. It was obvious this was going to
happen but of course you weren’t in the least interested in hearing our views before you went ahead with this scheme.
Simply stopping cars from continuing along King Charles Road to Tolworth isn’t going to make people get a bike. Drivers will
take another route.
So, either they will come down King Charles then take Hollyfield to get onto Ewell Road, or more cars will use Ewell Road.
And if the traffic is heavy, when they get to Beaconsfield, they turn onto it, often driving fast because they are frustrated, and
then turn right onto King Charles, missing out a significant length of Ewell Road. Our road is narrow and it’s difficult to find
somewhere to pull over if you meet another car coming the other way, causing another problem.
Residents of Beaconsfield Road, who want to get into Berrylands, now have to do a difficult right turn onto Ewell Road, then
go through three sets of lights, before turning onto Hollyfield. Both these right turns will become even more difficult, and
potentially dangerous, when the cycle lane is in place.
Before you question the need for anyone in Beaconsfield Road to use a car to get to Berrylands, we have a small business
providing a service to local people. It involves us visiting people’s homes. My partner cycles and I drive a low emission car. I
can’t cycle for health reasons and walking would not be efficient as I might have visits at the other end of Surbiton, or out as
far as Thames Ditton, after Berrylands.
I’m struggling to understand which area you thought you were going to make quieter. Was it just the few feet between
Beaconsfield and Hollyfield? All you have achieved is to push more traffic onto both Hollyfield and Beaconsfield Roads, and
create even more standing traffic on Ewell Road, pumping out fumes.
The signage you’ve provided is inadequate. There should be the appropriate no left or right turn signs on the junctions.
Drivers are still arriving at the barrier looking puzzled and it’s not surprising. We saw an ambulance having to turn around the
other day.
This was an ill-conceived, poorly thought through idea, particularly at a time when many people don’t want to risk public
transport. Not everyone can or wants to ride a bike, but if you want to make things better for cyclists, the best thing you could
do is properly repair the many pot holes in this area which are very dangerous for people on bikes. I guess that’s not nearly as
sexy as spending millions on cycle lanes that everyone can see though is it?
It would be half so bad if cyclists actually used them!
If you want to cut down on emissions - campaign for affordable electric vehicles and provide more charging points.

Objection

Objection

Objection

I wish to raise a formal objection to the change in the traffic flow on King Charles Rd. This has been done with no
consideration to the access to clinics on Hollyfield Rd. Early morning traffic is gridlocked on Hollyfield Rd.
Traffic is diverted through to small residential Roads i.e. Beaconsfield Rd.
Traffic queues and congestion on the main rd to Kingston.
I cannot believe that you have introduced this during COVID when people are anxious about using public transport and more
cars are on the road.
Once again another traffic scheme that has been introduced without any thought or consultation with people who live and
work in Kingston.

B45

Objection

I wish to object most strongly to the LTN scheme barrier which has been implemented in King Charles Road, Surbiton.
I live in Beaconsfield Road and I have noticed that when I go to work (I have sat and observed) and when I come home, cars
are driving up to the barriers and diverting down Beaconsfield Road. Beaconsfield Rd is a small road and why should we get
the extra traffic and fumes especially as there seems to be a diversion sign on Broomfield Rd saying that the road is closed,
have the residents put that there to stop traffic coming down their road?
My elderly mum lives in Raeburn Ave so I now have to try and turn right on to the Ewell Road (a nightmare at the traffic lights)
to divert down Holyfield Rd on to Alexander Drive and then Raeburn Ave which is now taking a lot longer when she needs me
to visit.
The Ewell Rd has become even busier because of this so although one area is now low traffic another area is even busier
with noise and car fumes.
I watched an ambulance last week drive up to the barrier and obviously couldn’t get through.
The coffee shop has no passing trade except dog walkers going to the park, which is awful given that businesses are trying to
survive during the pandemic.
Please consider my views.
I hereby formal object to the King Charles Road low traffic trial. It has produced more traffic on the surrounding roads during
rush hour. The traffics now up the broadway is awful and overloaded. Simply cutting one road off without any thought into
where the flow would go after is a disaster. It was an important road leading to shops and parks for the local community.
I wish to object to the installation of the barrier along King Charles Road in Surbiton.
The King Charles Road barrier has in effect moved the traffic onto and around the more residential roads within Berrylands
area.
Traffic is now forced to re-route, at best just Raeburn Avenue and Alexandra Drive, to rejoin King Charles Road. This has to
be causing extra pollution from vehicle emissions into the general Berrylands residential area and is adding to the traffic
coming through this area.
If you deem King Charles Road to be a ‘rat run’, I would suggest removal the recently installed barrier, and put in place other
traffic calming measures such as humps or the ‘staggered give ways’ on alternate sides which would allow traffic access to
the whole of King Charles Road but at a lower speed.

B46

Neither object I tried to respond to the survey online but unfortunately it taught I had pressed submit before I got the chance to respond to
nor support
any of the questions, so please disregard my survey response.
In the meantime, I live on Browns Road and frequently used King Charles Road to get to my house but am now diverted to
Ewell Road. A few thoughts:
1) I’m not clear on the need for the Traffic control measures since the traffic on King Charles Road has never been that bad
and the existing traffic calming measures work well.
2) As a frequent cyclist, I have often cycled down King Charles Road and felt totally safe. I don’t think the control measures
will make a significant difference to cyclists using the road. If the purpose is to make the road better for cyclists, then the
recent investment in the cycle highway should have been made in making King Charles Road more suitable for bikes, not
Ewell Road. This doesn’t feel like it complements that investment, with the objective seemingly to push all cars and bikes onto
Ewell Road.
3) Traffic on Ewell Road is always heavy. To ease pollution on that road, isn’t a better approach to keep traffic moving on
other roads, supporting the unavoidable need to get cars from the A3 into Kingston? Do the air pollution studies include Ewell
Road which houses a lot of residents, including a proposed new care home and children’s nursery?
4) With the increase in walking, my expectation would be that more people will use the pedestrian crossings over Ewell Road,
increasing the congestion and making the feel at the Ewell Road shops even more pedestrian unfriendly than they already
are. Increasing traffic on Ewell Road will exacerbate this.
I am overall in favour of encouraging more cycling but also not in favour of doing so by pushing all traffic onto one road, which
is used by pedestrians as well as cyclists. Pedestrians are the loser in this whole scheme.
On a related matter, the new junction at the end of Browns Road and Ewell Road has no road markings on it. I am a sensible
driver but I have no idea who’s right of way it is on the new paving and where exactly I should be stopping to check for
bikes/pedestrians. I see that the same junction going into Oak Hill Crescent does have road markings. If there was an
accident, I think there would be an argument to say that the rights of way were unclear at Browns Road.
I look forward to hearing the outcomes of the trials.

Objection

Objection

Hello, I am not a resident, my ex-partner is a resident and I must drop off my daughter to her house once a week.
I wish to complain about the road closure in King Charles Rd. I've been using this road for more than a year because my ex
partner lives on this road. It was never a cut through or a rat run. The volume of traffic that I have experienced in the last year
is very minimal and seems quite normal for this kind of Rd.
I am now forced to travel twice the distance and wait in traffic to reach my ex partners house. I sat behind 8 cars and waited
more than 10 minutes to rejoin traffic. 8 cars with their engines running, driving twice the distance. Quite ridiculous. (there
were more than 8 cars behind me when I finally made it onto the main road)
You're trying to fix a problem that was not there.
I urge you to remove the barrier.

B47

Objection

I am writing a formal letter of objection to the following Low Traffic Neighbourhood Schemes:
Albert Road - KingMap0045
Lower Ham Road - TMO-P302
King Charles Road - TMO-P306
I am writing with the following objections:
1) the 6 month 'trial' period of this scheme is far too long. Local and national leaders announce changes to coronavirus
legislation up to every 3 weeks, so 6 months (almost 9 times that amount of changes) seems ludicrous. The scheme needs to
adapt to the every-changing legislation so it can work with the community, rather than against it as it is doing now.
2) The scheme increases traffic. Having read through the documentation online, I still don't understand how closing said roads
are supposed to help traffic flow. With the cold and wet winter months approaching many more people want to use their
personal vehicles compared to walking or cycling. Therefore, these road closures don't benefit anyone since non-motor users
don't use them, and motor users can't use them, and this creates more traffic on the limited number of roads available left to
drive on.
3) Cyclists. Cyclists are a massive problem in Kingston anyway because with ample cycle lanes they still cycle on the much
narrower roads. The same thing has happened with each LTN scheme. Cyclists are not using the blocked off roads
designated for them, and are instead using the chock-a-block roads that regular motorists have to use.
Basically, the scheme is highly flawed and should end as soon as the trial period ends, if not before.
Who thought of this stupid idea of closing King Charles road to cars?
I'm a single mum and i've children whom I take to fish ponds and alexandra recreation park in the morning, and because of
you I can't do that anymore.
My only option is drive in Ewell road and wait in the busy traffic heading to Kingston for an hour, just to reach a place where I
could earlier drive to in 5 minutes. Just in case you think that's a good option (to wait for an hour), let me remind you it's not
as such young kids can't stay in car that long nor do we have that much time in the day.
Or are you suggesting I carry my babies in 2 arms and walk 25 minutes from my place to the park?
Or carry them in bicycle, with kids on either side hanging on to me for their life?
Or should we stop going out altogether and stay inside the house because council will only let cyclists use the road?
Just to get a little bit of funding from the government, you have ruined my life. Do you even realise that cars are used by all
kinds of people, including the most vulnerable.

Objection

Objection

Following my filling out of the feedback form regarding the above scheme, I would like to issue a formal complaint about the
high level of traffic that Hollyfield Road is experiencing as a result of the barriers introduced on King Charles Road

B48

Support

Hopefully you have now had time to realise this LTN “initiative” is not achieving the objective it was created to fulfil but is, in
fact, an expensive disaster. I understand the council did not “pay” rather it was funded via a grant from City Hall however we,
the taxpayers, still ultimately did fund the LTN programme.
The implementation of the Model Barrier has just forced traffic down the already congested Ewell Road, caused primarily due
to the installation of the poorly designed new cycle lanes. You have slow moving traffic passing children going to Hollyfield,
Dysart and Lime Tree Schools; so much for the clean air you state these LTNs create. All these LTN’s do, is move traffic from
one area to another, so whilst one neighbourhood appears to seemingly wins others most definitely lose. One must also
remember, traffic leaves have not returned to pre-C19 levels - I use the local roads during term time each weekday during
both rush hour periods so I have first-hand knowledge, regardless of what statistics show – so this is set to only become even
worse when C19 is finally under control.
Some drivers have taken to Hollyfield and Browns Road to reach King Charles Road in the area this barrier was designed to
protect, whilst others are using Raeburn Avenue and Surbiton Hill Park to reach the end of King Charles Road; these facts
make the barrier redundant.
In spite the signage, scooters, mopeds and motorcycles are still passing through the barrier and use King Charles Road.
Additionally, this barrier has made this a perfect escape route for thieves on mopeds to evade the Police.
On that point, the Ambulance service in Ewell Road have complained they do not have barrier keys; have they been supplied
to the Fire Brigade and the Police? The congestion Ambulance service have encountered on Ewell Road means if they need
to get to an Code 2 emergency call in say King Charles Road, delays in responding are inevitable. I understand they were too
were not consulted prior to the install of the model barrier. I just hope no one dies as a result of this ridiculous LTN.
Just adding our support for the low traffic installation on King Charles road. We live on Beaconsfield and use the playground a
lot, it feels much safer to cross and we feel more confident to bike that way too. Many thanks.

Objection

B49

I am raising a formal objection to the above and have the following questions:
How are you going to properly determine the impact of the road closure with the continuous changes in advice regarding
working from home/leaving the house due to the pandemic?
You have admitted that you do not have data regarding traffic on Alexandra Drive immediately prior to closing KCR so how
are you going to compare "like for like" traffic data? Using data from a number of years ago means the trial is not going to
provide an accurate picture.
It seems that work has begun on converting the AEC on KCR into a school. Has the modelling done by the highways team
taken this into account?
I would like to see the modelling done by the highways team. The output of any sort of modelling depends on the data that
has been inputted. The initial data you provided relating to KCR was overstated by 6000 car journeys so clearly if this was the
input data the modelling will be completely wrong.
There continues to be increased traffic on Alexandra Drive and Raeburn Avenue which clearly demonstrates that you have
not created a low traffic neighbourhood but merely a low traffic road. The DfT has clearly said that councils are required to
demonstrate a genuine benefit and I look forward to seeing the data which shows this.
I have also not seen any more cyclists on KCR and I would like to see your data with regard to this.
The trial has been running for 2 months and so you should have sufficient data to show the impact of the road closure.
I therefore look forward to seeing the data and modelling I have requested above.
May I remind you that you are public servants and so being transparent about the conduct of the trial is paramount as you are
required to act on behalf of residents and not entitled to simply impose measures as you choose without showing justification
and genuine benefit to ALL residents and not just a few.

I wish to object to the modal filter currently placed on King Charles Road (KCR). I ask for it to be removed. It has adversely
affected my travel and I believe it has had a negative effect on traffic in the area.
Although anecdotal in the absence of definitive quantitative data, the traffic on Alexandra Drive appears greater than before
the imposition of the block. More traffic is using the road throughout the day but particularly in the peaks during the morning,
at the end of the school day during the mid-afternoon and during the early evening. A significant amount of this traffic uses
Courtlands Road (so will not be picked up by the temporary counter on Alexandra Drive nearer to the KCR junction). There
have been more instances of gridlock at the Courtlands Road junction caused by the traffic and cars parked (legally)
restricting the road to a single vehicle width.
In common with many other Berrylands residents, in order to drive towards Tolworth and the A3 I am now forced to either
drive round via Raeburn Avenue or use Hollyfield Road. Again, the traffic seems greater on Raeburn Avenue than previously.
There has been more traffic queuing at the lights at the end of Hollyfield Road a high percentage turning left onto the Ewell
Road towards Tolworth. Similarly, on my return journeys I am forced to travel further or sit in queues with other likewise
inconvenienced motorists waiting for traffic signals. All of which increases journey times, adds to petrol bills and raises
pollution.
Longer journeys not served by public transport and carrying heavy items, including a weekly shop, mean that It is not at all
practical to completely stop using the car. At present getting delivery slots from supermarkets for someone not in an at-risk
category is almost impossible. Buying only from the local shops is, often significantly, more expensive than a weekly
purchase from a larger supermarket.
There has been no specific justification for blocking KCR at that point. The information on the Council website and from the
Councillors is entirely generic. It may well be that constructing Low Traffic Neighbourhoods in appropriate locations is a
reasonable or indeed sensible policy. However there has been: no quantifiable evidence-based justification as to why KCR
has been blocked at this point; a repeated mantra from local Councillors on the generic benefits of LTNs without any specific
details to the precise circumstances pertaining to KCR; no description of exactly what constitutes the LTN “cells” that this
blockage is supposed to support.
The generic material consistently refers to the concept of neighbourhood “cells” surrounded by distributor / border / main
roads. If the KCR block is intended to support an LTN where is (or are) the associated cells, what are the permitter roads?
I have also submitted the bulk of this text on the Councill’s Survey form regarding the KCR barriers.

Objection

I wish to register my objection to this road closure . I live in Ewell Road, and have noticed an increase in traffic near Derby Rd
since this
closure ., pollution, always a problem here , will also increase with
heavier traffic , which can tail back to the Broadway from Ditton Road
traffic lights . Before any decision is taken I suggest a canvas of local
affected inhabitants should happen. As for Broomfield / Beaconsfield ,
one cannot imagine too many drivers using those roads as a cut through
the roads are only wide enough for a vehicle at a time due to the parking
on both sides .If you want to slow traffic , why not build a chicane at
the curve instead of the barriers

B50

Objection

Objection

I am writing to object to the low traffic scheme implemented on King Charles Road this year. Firstly, I strongly agree that the
traffic using the corridor created by Ewell Road between Kingston and the A3 should be kept on the main roads. I do not
agree that the way to do this is to close part of King Charles Road. The reason for my objection is simple: The measure has
not reduced traffic in the back roads. What has happened instead is that the traffic has been pushed onto the surrounding
roads, particularly Alexandra Drive, Berrylands Road and Raeburn Avenue. This has resulted in a dangerous increase of
traffic on roads that were previously relatively quiet and have a number of schools connected to them. I'm sorry to say that
this has increased the risk to children in the area, which I'm confident was not the intention of Kingston Council. I would
suggest that this scheme be discontinued at the earliest opportunity and other more sensible (not to mention safer) measures
considered.

B51

Objection

Not having done this before I am not sure I have used an acceptable format.
If this submission is not acceptable for any reason, please let me know immediately

B52

Low Traffic Neighborhood Survey
Surbiton – King Charles Road – TMO-P306
19 Nov 2020
Many thanks to the Councillors for letting me have my say at the virtual
committee meeting. Especially a Councillor forwarding
the info in order that I could make this submission.
I must add that I had to lookup via Google the definition of ‘Modal
Filters’ after the look on some councilors faces when I used the word
‘planters’ at the meeting.
A modal filter is used to limit through-journeys by certain modes of
transport, I loved this bit – Modal filters are used to achieve filtered
permeability and are part of the toolbox of low traffic neighborhoods.
In a cycling context the most pertinent type of ‘filter’ is one that limits
access to just walking or cycling.
This is taken from tired looking web site - The Cycling Embassy of Great
Britain – no kidding!!
I will be serious from now on.
I have lived in the borough of Kingston most of my life with a short
period in neighbuoring Epsom. I would have used King Charles Road
regularly from the early sixties, when my Mother lived on Kingston hill
and I was at Chessington and later Epsom. King Charles Rd was the
most straight forward route rather than through the center of town. I
have lived 30 plus years in Berrylands.
Clearly the positioning of the Modal was decided by someone who did
not have a thorough understanding of the complexity of the road
system in and around the Berrylands estate.
King Charles Rd has been continually altered and generally messed
about with over the years. So much so that you do not drive the road,
you go on manoeuvres and have to duck and dive. If it is not parked
cars both sides, width restrictions, humps, you name it. It certainly
means you have to keep your speed down. For us from Manor Drive,
King Charles Rd is not a rat run, it is our preferred and more
importantly the most direct route through to Tolworth and the A3.
Closing this road through to Tolworth inevitably means an increase in
traffic on other route options. My biggest concern is Holyfield Rd on to
the Ewell Rd which is an awkward junction at the best of times. Now at
busier times a queue builds up and often only two vehicles at a time
manage to join traffic flow for a left turn with each sequence of the
lights. I am concerned that an impatient driver will cause a serious
crash. I know the residents of the flats next to the electricity sub-

Support

I am writing about the temporary order to close King Charles Road TMO - P306. Its genius. I love it. I am a resident of King
Charles Road and myself and my husband prefer to cycle and walk on short journeys. This closure has more than halved
the through traffic on our road which was becoming ever more busy. I now feel very much safer cycling to Tolworth or
Kingston or further, as does my husband, and I am also noticing more people walking and more people running past my
house. We now never take our car out for short journeys - we only cycle or walk which is much better for us and probably the
environment too.
Please make this change permanent. I also feel that children are safer and it has transformed the way in which we interact
with our neighbours, i now talk more to my neighbours across the street as there is no constant fast moving traffic preventing
us from crossing back and forth

Support

I would like to support this TMO.
I live on King Charles Road and we have seen a very large reduction in through traffic, and particular in cars driving very fast.
As this is a residential area with a large amount of children this is very welcome. Particularly as we have 2 parks, a
playground and a new school being created.

B53

Neither object Thank you for the recent email that included information on traffic flows before and after the installation of the barrier on King
nor support
Charles Road.
As a resident of Berrylands Road I felt I should provide some feedback. Overall, there is no noticeable difference in traffic
volume on Berrylands Road (the stretch of the road between King Charles Road and Eweel Road). However there is a
marked increase in heavy good vehicles using the road, now that they are forced to travel up Ewell Road before entering
Berrylands (although I have no idea why so many HGVs head into Berrylands!).
The other noticeable difference is the speed of vehicles has increased. I am not sure why this is and I would be interested in
seeing the data gathered by the temporary traffic counting strips as I believe they record speed too.
Both of the above points lead me to the following conclusion; the TMO, if made permanent, will place lives at risk on
Berrylands Road. This stretch of road has a 70ish meter stretch that is single file, due to the parking spaces that are provided
on the road. This causes traffic tondreammof be quickly to get past the bottleneck.
There are no appropriately sites crossing points in place for those using the amenities on either side of the road. There is one
crossing point but this is past Howard Road and therefore not suitable for amenity users. Even the new junction provided as
part of the King Charles Road traffic calming measures did not, for some reason, provide a safe crossing point for the users of
Berrylands Road.
Therefore pedestrians are forced to cross the road between parked cars, which as we all know is dangerous.
The road is used by many schoolchildren (a hundred per day I would estimate) and nursery aged children with their parents.
With the increase in speed and the increase in HGVs, I consider that traffic calming measures would be welcomed here. I
appreciate speed bumps are old hat now but there are other, simple ways to reduce the speed of traffic. Given that King
Charles Road recently had a large amount spent on traffic calming and has now been designated a low traffic neighbourhood,
I think it is time that a genuinely busy and thriving street received funding to improve the safety of the street for ALL users.
I would welcome any feedback on this email, I am not anti the TMO but i do feel that there are relatively simple ways to
mitigate some of the risks that have been increased by the TMO.

Objection

Objection

B54

I want to raise my concerns about the new traffic calming measures on King Charles Road, specifically about the gridlock it is
creating on Hollyfield Road at all hours and although only a tiny proportion of normal commuter numbers is currently using the
roads. The traffic lights on Ewell Road and the single file portions of Hollyfield mean that the road frequently becomes blocked
and impassable, with people attempting to reverse up the street and climbing onto the pavements to pass one another while
families are attempting to use the park and patients of the NHS centre are coming and going. As this situation is only going to
intensify as people return to commuting even this seems unrepresentative of the danger that this could pose, which I have to
say has never concerned me as a pedestrian on King Charles Road.
I wrote in at the start of the ‘trial’ to express my concern at the impact of the ill-thought-out decision to erect a barrier
preventing through traffic on King Charles Road. Having lived with it for several months I feel compelled to give you my
opinion. Sadly this unilateral decision has done nothing to reduce traffic but has increased congestion and pollution on nearby
roads such as Alexander Drive, Raeburn Avenue and Berrylands. I cannot comment on other roads such as Browns Road but
I would imagine that the impact is the same. With the imposition of this LTN on King Charles Road you have ruined roads that
were actual ‘neighbourhoods’. King Charles Road was originally constructed as a filter for Ewell Road traffic – it has never
been a suitable road for a LTN but trying to turn it into one has impacted heavily on nearby roads that were residential
neighbourhoods. The congestion on previously relatively quiet streets has been severe despite the fact that there have been
travel restrictions in place for much of the trial period. Once travel gets back to normal I dread to think what the impact will be
as a result of this Council’s vanity project.
Whilst I wholeheartedly agree with the Council’s policy of encouraging cycling and the use of public transport, the decision to
carry out these measures during the pandemic is nothing short of callous. The Government guidelines are to avoid public
transport if possible in order to allow key workers to travel to work safely, many Borough residents are in the vulnerable
category or have young children and cycling is not an option for them especially in winter. Of the few Councils that decided to
take up the LTN scheme many have abandoned them.
With the dual action of blocking King Charles Road as a through route and reducing the flow of traffic on Ewell Road with the
creation of a cycle route you have increased congestion, increased pollution and increased the time it takes for emergency
vehicles to move around the Borough. Please do the right thing and restore King Charles Road to what it was – it is
benefitting a very small minority of people (who were well aware of the type of road it was before moving there) and
inconveniencing the majority with potentially deadly consequences.

Objection

B55

I’m writing in regards to the road closure mentioned in the subject box above.
After living in the area my entire life and being in a road off King Charles Road for the last five years I feel very strongly about
this road closure.
Prior to the closure, exiting where King Charles Road meets Ewell Road (opposite Lenelby Road) was a perfect way of
getting to the A3 at Tolworth with minimal traffic. I must also add there was never queuing traffic waiting to join the Ewell
Road, the worse case would be a few cars in front waiting to join the traffic flow of Ewell Road.
Now with the closure in place the natural exit from where I live is Hollyfield Road.
This is an awful road to use which is full of parked cars, meaning you’re continually stopping to let oncoming traffic by. When
you do finally reach the junction that meets Ewell Road you daren’t edge out slightly in case you get caught in the cross box
junction camera!
I must also add that due to the road closure the traffic volumes on this road have increased, where as before both exits to the
Ewell Road flowed much more freely.
One of the main reasons that I decided to live in this area was the excellent exit points from the Berrylands area to the Ewell
Road A3 bound.
As a recap this closure has caused more traffic/pollution in Holyfield Road, delays and stress due to unnecessary extended
journey times and general upset to local residents.
When this is reviewed after the six month period in March the findings will be totally inaccurate, due to the current national
lockdown traffic volumes are significantly reduced, meaning that when we finally get back to some kind of normality the
congestion will be even worse and the review period will have passed.
I urge you to take my comments on board and look forward to your response.

Objection

B56

Objection

I am writing to formally object to the closure of King Charles Road. I am a resident of Raeburn Avenue. My reasons for
objecting are as follows:
1.
As a result of the closure of King Charles Road additional traffic has been funnelled into Raeburn Avenue. Traffic
levels on Raeburn Avenue were already high, particularly during the rush hours, however, the road closure has added to this.
I frequently have to wait for several minutes before I am able to exit my drive. I frequently witness rows between drivers who
are frustrated by not being able to drive down the road, because the queues to reach the roundabout at the junction of
Raeburn Avenue and Ewell Road are so long during the rush hour that the traffic is stationary in both directions. Cars
frequently mount the pavement to try to force a way through, causing risk to pedestrians and damaging the pavement and
grass verges.
2.
Journey times are delayed, not just for me, but for people using Raeburn to get to the shops, schools, and places of
work.
3.
There is a negative impact on the environment, as cars are queueing with their engines idling.
4.
Creating low traffic neighbourhoods sounds laudable, but in practice making an area low traffic automatically creates
higher traffic areas in other places. This must be lovely for the residents who benefit by the closure, both in terms of
enjoyment of their property and the increase in its value, but it’s less good for the rest of us.
5.
Pedestrians already have a wonderfully safe and picturesque route to the local shops and services on Tolworth
broadway along King Charles Road - they can walk through the park. It is therefore unnecessary to close the road in addition
to this.
In light of the above, I ask that you reverse your decision and reopen the road.
When are you going to stop this silly low traffic scheme in king Charles road? It's destyoying my life and all the traffic is now
coming to ewell road. Taking us back to dark ages, we should all stop paying council tax and road tax.

Objection

B57

I am writing with regards to the LTN on King Charles Road.
I have waited and observed for almost six months since the LTN was put in place, in order to be objective and understanding
that new ventures need time to work. However, I have the following points to raise:
They were put there with no consultation with residents nearby. The meetings held subsequently outside Coffee on the
Corner were not overly helpful. I was advised to cycle rather than use my car and use panniers to carry my work items, which
was neither appreciated or appropriate, despite insistence about 'how much I could fit in panniers'. It simply will not work with
my job due to the amount of bags I have and there are also other times when I am driving on my way to or from somewhere
and need to go into Berrylands. I now have to drive an extra half a mile and when for any reason one of the roads into
Berrylands is blocked it invariably ends up being more than this, not to mention the congestion that is then created on these
already too small streets.
There is currently a new issue created by the closed roads of Beaconsfield Road / Ditton Road / Kingsdowne Road.....and this
is not the first time numerous roads have been closed at the same time. This means getting into Berrylands is even more
difficult.
If I understand it correctly, along with reducing traffic, they were put on King Charles Road partly because of input from
residents on King Charles Road and they do not consequently seem to benefit many other Berrylands / Surbiton residents.
King Charles Road is a through road from Tolworth to Kingston as it is wide enough to cope with the traffic it previously had.
If you live on it, it seems reasonable to accept it will have some traffic on it.
All the traffic 'counters' placed around Berrylands, including the one on Broomfield Road have been put there during the third
lockdown. This is not representative of the true level of traffic and will give a false impression of how the roads are being
used. In fact this whole scheme has only been used since we have been working from home. When the country starts to
return to work, the levels of traffic will increase and this will then leave The Ewell Road and smaller side streets (now being
used as entry to Berrylands) under ridiculous pressure, especially at the beginning and end of the day.
I wonder what your plan is with regards to the King Charles barrier. We were told there would be a survey after six months
sent to local residents for feedback. Will this be happening?

Surbiton Neighbourhood Committee

C1

Appendix C

22 July 2021
Community Grants Programme
Report by Assistant Director Culture, Communities and Engagement
Purpose
To consider an application for a Neighbourhood Community Grants (NCG)
Recommendations
That the Committee considers an application for a £1,250 Neighbourhood Community
Grant from the Sunray and Egmont Residents Association as set out in paragraphs 6 11.
Benefits to the Community:
To encourage local voluntary and community sector organisations, faith groups, charities
and not-for-profit organisations to access funding and expand their capacity.

Key Points
A.

There are three different funding sources under the new Community Grants
Programme available for Neighbourhood Committees and Ward Members to
support and encourage local voluntary and community activity in their
neighbourhoods.

B.

The Committee is being asked to consider an application for a Neighbourhood
Community Grant from Sunray and Egmont Residents Association. The agreed
guidelines for the Neighbourhood Community Grants programme are attached as
Annex 1. A summary of the application is set out in paragraphs 6-11 of the report.

Context
1.

There are three different funding sources under the new Community Grants
Programme available for Neighbourhood Committees and Ward Members to
support and encourage local voluntary and community activity in their
neighbourhoods, as follows:

2.

Neighbourhood Community Grants (previously known as Your Kingston
Grants and New Initiatives Grants), of up to £3,000 per application, are available
to fund projects/ activities/ services to benefit communities in each of the four
neighbourhood areas. Each Neighbourhood is awarded £20,000 per annum,
which is reduced as Neighbourhood Community Grants are awarded throughout
the financial year.

3.

Councillor Ward Funding, at £2,000 per Councillor per financial year, will
remain at the discretion of individual Ward Councillors unless the Neighbourhood
Committee has decided to pool all or part of the Councillor Ward Funding budget.

4.

C2
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) must be spent on infrastructure needed
to support development in the Borough. The upper limit of funding to apply for will
be the amount allocated to each Neighbourhood Area - allocation will vary by
Neighbourhood and is not time limited.

Neighbourhood Community Grant (NCG) application(s)
Sunray and Egmont Community Residents Association (Joint application with the
Hook 2 minute litter pick group) - £2500 (£1250 from the Surbiton Neighbourhood
Committee and £1250 from the South of the Borough Neighbourhood Committee).
6. Minimum Standards Dashboard
Minimum Standard
Does the group have a written constitution or
memorandum and articles or set of rules that
establishes that it is a voluntary, community,
faith or other not-for-profit organisation?

Met (Y/N)
Yes

Has the group demonstrated how surpluses are
re-invested if the group is a not-for-profit
organisation?

2 Minute Liter pick is a not
for profit organisation with
funds going into
purchasing equipment.

Does the group have a management committee
or board of trustees with at least three
members?

Yes

Does the group have a bank or building society
account in the name of the organisation?

Yes

Does the group have at least two unrelated
people to authorise cheques and make
withdrawals?

Yes

Does the group have an accounting system
such as annual accounts to record income and
expenditure?

Yes

Has the group shown that it does not have an
ongoing deficit that the grant application could
be used to fill?

Yes

7. SECra undertakes a litter pick once a month, on the first Saturday of the month and
they work closely with the Hook 2 minute litter group who also undertake a monthly
litter, on the last Sunday of each month. This application is a joint application to both
the Surbiton and South of the Borough neighbourhood committees to support these
ongoing litter picks.

C3

8. The litter picks operate from March to December every year and if granted the
funding would allow for the purchase of additional litter pickers and protective
equipment (gloves, bags and hand gels) as well as allow for the wider publication of
the events, either by the purchase of advertising space as required but more
specifically the purchase of 10 Litter Pick Boards. These are placed out whenever
the groups undertake picks and have generated interest and membership of
subsequent events.
9. On average, each participant undertaking a litter pick will fill at least one bag with
rubbish and in the case of Hook and Secra events there are usually at least 15
volunteers taking part in each event.
10. It is unfortunately clear that the incidents of littering and fly tipping have increased
recently and without groups such as these all too often the litter remains in situ for
far too long, leading inevitably to more litter being dropped, and if left unchecked a
real visible deterioration of the public spaces within the neighbourhood.
11. In addition to the obvious benefits to the community by way of looking cleaner and
more cared for, the Litter Picks are a great way in bringing communities together,
across generations in a way that makes participants feel more positive about where
they live and without doubt instills in the participants a sense of pride.
12. The South of the Borough Neighbourhood Committee agreed to award £1250 for th
SotB element on 29 June 2020.
Financial Context
13. The Council is operating in an increasingly challenging financial environment.
Kingston faced a number of financial challenges in the medium to longer term even before the COVID-19 outbreak, which has further added to these challenges.
The economic and financial consequences of the pandemic, growing demand for
services, and limited government grant funding make it difficult to find adequate
funds to meet the Borough's needs.
14. The future of local government finance faces a significant level of uncertainty. The
impact of the Fair Funding Review and a future review of business rates is currently
unknown, and the lasting effects of COVID-19 on our residents, local businesses
and the Council itself remain uncertain.
15. Despite these challenges the Council has a drive and commitment to ensure it is
doing the best for residents and communities.
Resource Implications
16. No additional resources will be required. This will be delivered within budget by
existing resources and operates within Financial Regulations.
Legal Implications
17. Part 11 of the Planning Act 2008 provides for the imposition of the Community
Infrastructure Levy. The Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010, as
amended, (the Regulations) implement the detail of the CIL using powers provided

C4
in Part 11 of the Act, including specifying how the CIL should be spent by charging
authorities. The Government has also issued Planning Practice Guidance on the
CIL.

18. Provided the CIL is spent in accordance with the restrictions contained in the
Regulations and the Guidance there should be no legal implications arising from the
Report.
19. The award of community funding grants and councillor ward funding grants by the
Neighbourhood Committee or councillors should not give rise to any legal
implications provided the grants are distributed in accordance with the relevant
criteria to appropriate persons, bodies or organisations.
20. Under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 (the 2010 Act) the Council must, when
exercising its functions, including considering applications for grant or CIL funding,
have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, harassment and
victimisation and other prohibited conduct, to advance equality of opportunity and
to foster good relations between those who share a ‘protected characteristic’ under
the 2010 Act and those who do not . A ‘protected characteristic’ is defined as age,
disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief,
sex and sexual orientation. Marriage and civil partnership are also protected
characteristics for the purposes of the duty to eliminate discrimination.
Equalities Impact Assessment
21. A full EQIA was carried out during the Neighbourhoods Review, this included the
consideration of grants and grant allocations.
22. There are no known direct equalities impacts arising from the decisions set out in
this paper however, Community Groups funded through these grants will need to
consider equalities when planning their projects and/ or submitting bids.
Health & Air Quality Implications
23. Organisations and groups are encouraged to submit grant applications that promote
the health and wellbeing of their local communities.
Road Network Implications
24. Grant awards are unlikely to impact local road networks or parking issues. However,
in the event of a grant being considered where road closures may apply i.e. street
play/ playing out/ community road party, the Neighbourhood Manager will review
and liaise with Highways and road network officers.
Background papers
o None other than those referred to in this report
Author of report - James Geach, Neighbourhood and Communities Manager,
james.geach@kingston.gov.uk

D1

Appendix D

SURBITON NEIGHBOURHOOD CO-CHAIR’S ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021

Introduction
This report and the work we have done in this municipal year is being presented in the context and
backdrop of an unprecedented Covid19 pandemic.
Since March 2020 and after our appointments as Co-Chairs in July 2020, there have also sadly
been a number of deaths from Covid19 in our neighbourhood, and our thoughts are with the
families and friends of those who have passed away. This has been both unsettling, and in some
cases, life changing for a lot of people - the psychological and physical impacts of which are still
being felt.
We acknowledge that residents have faced numerous challenges over the lockdown period,
including accessing the right help and support when needed, avoiding social contact with other
non-household members, reducing transmission by adhering to the ‘hands, face, space’ public
health messages and dealing with myriad of information relating to track and trace, and dealing
with Covid19 symptoms and the aftermath of hospital treatment.
The Kingston Stronger Together Hub has helped and supported residents who needed advice and
reassurance during the pandemic. In the early phase, councillors across the neighbourhood joined
the effort to call round the more vulnerable residents ensuring they were able to access the right
services and available support networks. This work has been repeated throughout the pandemic.
Together with residents, neighbourhood managers and our voluntary sector partners, deliveries for
medications and food have been well organised and we would like to take the opportunity of
thanking everyone who helped in this mammoth effort. Please visit Kingston Stronger Together
and FAQs – www.kingston.gov.uk for further details.
The effects of the pandemic are still emerging. As Co-chairs we will be looking at how to help and
support residents in the medium to long-term, particularly focusing on post-Covid recovering
services. We will do this in partnership with “Friends of” groups, resident associations, charities and
other local organisations, including any data we are able to gather from our health partners,
including Public Health and SWL Clinical Commissioning Group. This will help inform our
understanding of what is happening in our communities, what the level of need is, how we build on
our strategy and objectives and shape what actions are required moving forward.
We are delighted to highlight in this annual report specific actions and key deliverables we have
achieved in the 2020/21 municipal year. They are as follows:
Surbiton Neighbourhood Community Plan
Our Surbiton Community Plan was approved at committee on 23rd February 2021. It clearly sets
out our vision, strategy and objectives for the next municipal year 2021/22 (starting June 2021) and
draws on the success (retrospectively) of the work we have already done as Co-Chairs in 2020/21.
Despite Covid restrictions, we have facilitated the implementation of many projects and initiatives
across the neighbourhood, and we are immensely grateful to officers, residents and local
councillors, and other voluntary sector organisations and local charities who have stepped in to
help and support residents and get these projects off the ground.

D2
Community Grants Programme (CGP)
We are also delighted to have awarded a total of £23,615 to various projects as part of the
Community Grants Programme, including Councillor Ward Funding for:
●
●
●

Surbiton Farmers Market (£2,356)
Surbiton Festive Decorations (£12,523)
Hanging Baskets (£8,736)

We also awarded a total of £14,296 as part of the Neighbourhood Community Grants to:
●
●
●
●
●
●

Christians Against Poverty (CAP) (£2,500) - providing free debt help and advice.
Friends of Victoria Recreation Ground (£1,896) - park improvements including a new
pathway.
Save the World Club (£3,000) - food programme to help and support residents in the
community during the Covid-19 pandemic and lockdown.
Hollyfield School (£900) - book reading scheme.
Zoological Society of London (£3,000) - hedgehog monitoring programme.
The Community Brain (£3,000) - artwork for the next phase of the walking trail from
Tolworth to Berrylands.

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Funding
CIL money totalling £13,500 was also agreed at February’s neighbourhood meeting for the Six
Acre Meadow site (as part of the Elmbridge Nature Reserve). Straddling the wards of Berrylands
and Alexandra and bordering onto New Malden, this project will encourage and enhance more
biodiversity and wildlife in these areas of natural beauty. We have worked with parks officers and
our biodiversity officer to facilitate this much needed funding to install a new boardwalk through the
meadow. Residents and visitors of all ages will be able to enjoy this setting for years to come.
We are also pleased to say that the construction of the new boardwalk started in May and was
completed in June. The new recycled plastic boardwalk has reused 54,123 plastic bottles, thus
also helping in a small way to reduce wider pollution from plastics.
Local Implementation Plans (LIP) Funding
Transport for London (TFL) gave funding for the next financial year and was approved at Surbiton
Neighbourhood Committee on 11th March. Due to the pandemic the funding available has been
uncertain.
The main project is the continuation of the Go-Cycle programme. Phase 3 works started in March
near the Tolworth Broadway end of Ewell Road, anticipated to reach the junction of Ditton Road by
the end of Summer 2021. This will complete phase 3 of the scheme, linking up South of the
Borough with Surbiton and Kingston.
There are various other schemes in the pipeline across the neighbourhood which will be brought to
committee for consultation.

D3
Surbiton Farmers’ Market
Much work behind the scenes took place in the Summer and Autumn of 2020 to get the farmers
market up and running again. Thanks go to the organisers of the market, local ward councillors
and the senior leadership team at the council who worked extremely hard over many weeks to
secure funding and deal with various highways issues including signage and road closure permits.
Closing off Maple Road has enabled the stalls to be positioned on the road rather than on the
pavement and doing this has helped maintain social distancing. As we emerge from the lockdown,
we will continue to work with the market organisers, residents and officers to establish the best way
forward.
Local businesses and restaurants are also keen for us to explore the option of extending Maple
Road’s functionality to enable evening dining and our aim is to realise what the ambition is of our
local community, liaise with officers on this feedback and explore what would work safely post
lockdown.
Friends of Fishponds Park
Action days have now restarted from 10th April. There are plenty of jobs to do around the park and
we understand members are keen to continue work on the orchard and removal of bramble and
other weeds. There is also an allotment project underway, with help from a local charity. There are
also on-going discussions with Thames Water about the draining system. Please visit Fishponds
Park, Surbiton - Home | Facebook to find out more about the volunteering work being done and up
and coming events.
Friends of Victoria Recreation Park
Friends of Victoria Rec was formed in 2020 initially out of opposition to a planning application for a
large incongruous telephone mast, but is now busy with improvements to the park. It is working
with RBK, our contractors and local councillors on improvements such as weed clearing along the
rail embankment, new planting at the Victoria Avenue entrance (using a Surbiton Neighbourhood
grant of £2,000) and rubbish clearance. They have run 2 volunteer days, and will organise more as
lockdown restrictions ease. Any residents wanting to join the group should email
fovr-surbiton@hotmail.com.
High Street Fund
The Mural Art Trail (CiC) and Surbiton Food Festival (organised by The Community Brain) have
now been endorsed, with £24,000 and £11,760 High Street grant funding awarded respectively for
both projects. Meetings are continuing between our Neighbourhood Manager James Geach and
Stephen Young from The Mural Art Trail CIC on the Boots passageway project and we are
delighted with the progress made so far. This will improve the linkage from St Philips car park to
the high street.
Our aim is still to set up a “Friends” of Surbiton High Street, bringing together all stakeholders to
consider how to improve the high street, but it has been difficult due to the Covid pandemic. With
further easing of the restrictions we hope to move forward with this plan.

D4
Friends of Surbiton Station
We’re delighted with the response to the RBK portal in the establishment of a Friends of Surbiton
Station group. The portal closed on 1st April 2021. We received over 80 responses of which the
majority are from residents which is a fantastic result.
The first Friends of meeting took place on 20th May 2021 involving a virtual presentation on SWR’s
adoption programme. Roughly 20% of residents have expressed an interest in a leading role
(Chair, Treasurer, etc).
Community Parks Programme
In line with our vision and strategy and working with the Borough’s Green Spaces Strategy (2015 2021), we sought to identify the existing Community Parks Programme and Capital Bids 2020/21
and 2023/24 allocation, and setting priority areas across the neighbourhood for further investment.
Claremont Gardens is included in the plan already for work on the drainage and we have extended
it to explore in consultation with residents what they would like to improve the park and then take
forward as a project for CIL funding. Other areas identified for potential improvements are to the
basketball courts in Alexandra Recreation Ground and further improvements to the play park and
pathways in Victoria Recreation Ground to allow better access to all park users.
Wildways Project
We have been working with officers to look at the ‘Wildways' project, which is seeking to
encourage native wildflower species to establish on grass verges. Loss of biodiversity has a
severe impact on our local ecosystem and its ability to function. The proposal has been researched
and led by our Biodiversity officer Elliot Newton.
One main location has now been agreed as part of phase 1 works (grass verges in and around
Langley Avenue in Surbiton Hill ward). After liaising with our neighbourhood colleagues, a further
site has also been agreed for phase 2 main works located at Elmbridge Road roundabout in
Berrylands Ward. Several other smaller sites have been put forward for future consideration and
these will contain specifically recommended planting for 'Biobeds'. This would align with the
wildways ethos by starting to incorporate sustainable pollinator plants into any new planting
schemes. These could potentially include work with the existing planting at the beds at Chiltern
Drive mini roundabout and The Crescent in St. Marks’ ward.
Residents have told us that they want sustainable and biodiverse outdoor spaces to enjoy, with
plenty of wildlife and areas of natural beauty contained within them. We are delighted that we are
able to move forward with phase one of the project planned for this Summer.
Fly Tipping and Waste Management
Looking at behaviour trends, we have seen an increase in fly tipping across the neighbourhood
and in poor waste management (overflowing bins/wrong bins put out) compared to the previous
year. The issues with poor waste management are due, in part, to increases in recyclables and in
food waste as more residents are at, or working from, home. Cllr. John Sweeney and Cllr. Liz
Green are both heading up a task force to tackle this issue and we are exploring various
enforcement options in the weeks ahead.

D5

We have also been working with officers, ward councillors and local residents living above flats to
find resolution to bin and waste issues in Brighton Road. A new roadside bin scheme is being
trialed and if successful rolled out in other locations.
Summary
As we reflect on the past year (with all its challenges), we reflect with positivity on the various
community activities we have undertaken despite the covid pandemic. We look forward to the next
municipal year 2021/22 and potential projects with enthusiasm, commitment and optimism.
We are exploring potential LIP and CIL funding opportunities within our parks and open spaces, as
well as other projects such as the High Street Fund and where the need arises, facilitating the
establishment of further Friends of groups across the neighbourhood.
During the next municipal year the council will be consulting on our Local Plan as mentioned by our
Neighbourhood manager James Geach at our last meeting. Please follow the link to Local Plan –
www.kingston.gov.uk - Kingston Council for further details.
During this time, local councillors from across the neighbourhood will be asking residents for their
thoughts and ideas on how they think Kingston and Surbiton neighbourhood should look in 20
years.
Within our neighbourhood, and as we shape Kingston together, we look forward to receiving
residents’ feedback and engaging with them on a range of topics including where our homes,
schools, parks should be, plus the adopted London Plan and issues such as challenging housing
targets and a declared climate emergency.
We would like to take the opportunity of thanking all our stakeholders, officers and key partners
within the council and across Surbiton neighbourhood for their on-going support and commitment.
Thanks also to our Surbiton neighbourhood councillor colleagues from across all parties for their
continued diligence and oversight in the work we do, for which we are very grateful. We look
forward to working with them in the year ahead.

.

Appendix E

E1

SURBITON NEIGHBOURHOOD COMMITTEE - 22 JULY 2021
Work Programme

Community
Grants

Planning
Applications

To consider applications for
Neighbourhood Community
Grant (NCG), Councillor
Ward Funding (CWF) and
Community Infrastructure
Levy (CIL) funding

Standard
item

To consider applications for
planning consent and other
related matters

Standard
item

Executive Director,
Corporate and
Communities
James Geach,
Neighbourhood Manager
(Surbiton)
Assistant Director,
Strategic Planning and
Infrastructure
Barry Lomax,
Head Development
Management

Neighbourhood
Manager’s
Verbal Update

To consider verbal update

Standard
item

Executive Director,
Corporate and
Communities
James Geach,
Neighbourhood Manager
(Surbiton)

King Charles
Road LTN

Review of arrangements

22 July
2021

Asst Director, Highways
& Regulatory
Younes Hamade

